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C- Shaman Abdel Majid Salim Al Majali Up to 31/7/2022

D- Abedraboh Mohanunad Abedraboh Habashneh Up to 23/5/2022



Board of Directors Report
For the year ending on 31/12/2022
A Speech of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Gentleimmen members of the general assembly,

On my behalf and on behalf of my fellow members of the Board of Directors, | welcome you and
thank you for accepting the invitation to attend this annual meeting of your esteemed company
through audiovisual communication technology. We hope you are in good health.

Gentlemen:

Our subsidiary company has delivered all the balances of previously produced military fabrics requirec
for the year 2022 on time. There are no required fabrics left for any party. By the grace of God
Almighty, good positive results have been achieved in our company's revenues from the profits of its
investments in banks and companies, as well as from the revenues of our subsidiary company, which
enabled us to continue distributing profits to our shareholders.

We extend our thanks, appreciation and respect to our Jordanian Armed Forces Arab Army and all
security authorities for their continuous support to our company during the previous decades and for
their continuous perseverance to preserve the security and safety of our beloved Jordan under the
shadow of His Majesty King Abdullah I, may God preserve him.

Imad Mouasher

Chairman of Board of Directors



B- Board of Directors Report

Messrs. The member of the general assembly: -

We are pleased to put in your hands our report on the company's activities and the most
important of it during the financial year ended 31/12/2022, in accordance with Article (4-b) of the
Instructions for the Disclosure of Exporting Companies, Accounting Standards and Auditing
Standards for the year 2004, effective from 1/3/2004. As follows: -

1 -A - The main activity of the company is the production and manufacture worsted (fabrics) in
all forms and different types of woolen and wool blended and synthetic summer, winter, military,
civil and trading of it.

To establish, build, equip and managing a factory / factory to make the above and invest its
money in buying and selling shares of companies and financial bonds, and to buy, sell, rent or
replace any movable or immovable properties or the rights or privileges deemed necessary by the
company.

B Geographical Location: The main office in Jawharat Al Shmeisani Building 18 Allal Al Fassi
Street — Shmeisani— Amman. in addition to the offices of the company located in the premises of
the subsidiary company (Jordan Fabric and Worsted Manufacturing Co)7 king Hussein Street
Rusaifa ~Awajan .The company has no any internal or external branches.

C-The accumulated capital investment at the end of the financial year is as follows:

JD
1- Investments (shares and bonds) 54.355.278
2 -Lands 96.344
3 —Buildings, machinery, furniture, tools and supplies - at cost 1.199.033
4 .Current assets 4.260.514
Total 59.911.169

D- Number of employees of Jordan Worsted Mills Co. Ltd.: 7
E — Company Address: -

PO Box 6060 Amman 11118 Jordan

Phone: 053743428 Fax 053744913

E-mail:Info@jordanworsted.com

Website:https://www.jowm-jo.com




2 — Subsidiaries: - (Jordan Fabric and worsted manufacturing Co. plc)
A- capital: Ten million Jordanian dinars.

B- Our company owns 80% of the capital, while Jordan Fabric and worsted manufacturing Co.

plc owns (treasury shares) 20%.
C- The nature of its work and the scope of its activities.

Manufacture and production of fabrics, yarns, textiles and related accessories, as well as
manufacturing and sewing ready-to-wear garments of all kinds and their uses and trading in all of
the aforementioned, and to establish, build, buy, sell, rent, rent and manage a factory or factories
to make what is provided, and it invests and disposes of its money that it does not need

immediately for its work in exchange for financial bonds and / or as decide from time to time .
D — The number of employees and workers of the subsidiary company is 14.

E — Geographical location: — The location of the subsidiary company is 7 King Hussein Street,

Rusaifa—Awajan.

F —There are no branches for the subsidiary.

G — There are no projects owned by the subsidiary.

H- There is no other information related to the subsidiary.
I- Company address- :

P.O Box 6060 Amman 11118 Jordan

Phone: 05/ 3743428 Fax: 05/ 3744913

Email: info@worstedfabric.com

Website: - jowm-—jo.com
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3 A The names of the members of the Board of Directors and a brief introduction about each of them :

Name

Nationality

Position

Membersh p Date

Date of Birth Qual fication

GraduationYear

Pract ca exper ence and membership of corporate boards

Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher

Muasher Investment &Trading Co

Jordantan

Cha rman

28/06/2020

21/09/1957 |[BA Of Economic

MA Df international Business
Administration

1979
1981

Chairman and General M: of Moash. and Trad ng Company from 1981 to date

Vice Chairman of the Arab nternational Hotels Company

Vice Chaiirman of the International Company for Hote s and Commercial Markets
Member of the Board of D rectors of Jordan Ahl Bank

Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher

Ranco Diversified Investments

Jordaman

Deputy Df
Chairman

28/06/2020

BA Of Architectural Engineering
MA OfEngineering / Stanford
University

07/08/1950

1973

1974

Cha rman of the Board of D rectors of Al 2ay Ready made Garments Manufacturing

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Internationa Company for Hotels and Commercial Markets
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Arab International Hotels

Cha rman of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Company for Hote and Tourism Education
Member of the Board of D rectors of Jordan Ahl Bank

Member of the National Councilfor Tourism

Former member of the Senate

50 years of experience n industry, tourism and banking

Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat

Jordanian

member/

General manager

28/06/2020

19/06/1942 ||BA Of Account ng

1976

Member of the Board of Directors of Al 2ay Ready Garments Manufactur ng to 30/6/2021

Member of the Board of D'rectors of the nternational Company for Hotels and Commercial Markets to
29/3/2021

Member of the Board of D rectors of Arab International Hote s

Member of the Board of Directors of the Tourlsm Business Company

Saba & Co. from 1/7/1963 - 1/5/1964

Legal Auditor

GeneralManager of Jordan Worsted Miils Co from 1/5/1964 to date

Jack N'cola Yacoub Kattan

Jordan an

Member

28/06/2020

14/02/1948 ||BA DF Economic
MA Df Economic

PhD Of Economic

1969
1974

1976

Member of the Board of Directors of the Arab Insurance Company {Jordan}
Board Member of Tourism Business Company

Member of the Board of Directors of Al 2ay Ready Garments Manufacturing
Board Member of Masafat Special zed Transport Company

Centra) Bank of Jordan from 1970 to 1972

Kuwait investment Company from 1976 to 1990

Jordan Ahli Bank / Deputy General Manager from 1991 2002

lordan lavestor Center Company / General Manager from 2002 to date

Basim Jamil issa Al Mouasher

Suhail Jamil At Muasher & Brothers Co.

Jordanian

Member

28/06/2020

20/06/1958 "5 ¢ Business Admin stration

1979

Cha rman of Leading Business & Projects Company
Cha rman of Henkel Jordan
Member of the Board of Directors of Arab International Hotels

‘Member of the Board of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies

Vice Chz rman of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage and Financ a) Markets Company

Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher
Rajai Muasher & Brothers Co

Jordanian

Member

28/06/2020

26/08/1978 BA of Law

1998

Member of the Board of D rectors of the Arab Internat onal Hotels Company
Ahh Bank from 1/6/1999 to 1/5/2000

Natlonal Commercial Centers from 1/2/2000 to 30/6/2008

Jordan green Vaiiey Company from 01/11/2008 to date
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Nane

Nat onal ty

Pasition

Membership Date

Date of Birth

Qualification

Graduat onYear

Practical experience and membership of corporate boards

ssam A Sule man Be be s

Jordan an

Member

28/06/2020

24/05/1945

1971

Vice Chairm an of the Board of the Jordanian Tanning Company 1982 - 2013
Vice Charman of the Board of Directors of fordan Tobacco and Cigarettes Company 1990 1999

Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Printing and Packaging Company 1989 - 1999

Member of the Board of Di: ofthet ional G for Leathor Products 1982 1990

Ahmad Awad Abd Al Halim Al-Hussein
Ahli Bank

Jordan an

Member

28/06/2020

16/07/1966

BA Of Business fEconomics

MA Of finance
PhD Of Fnance

1987
1993
2005

CEO / General Manager at Jordan Ahli Bank from 1/2/2023

Executive Vice President / General Manager at Al Ahly Bank from 10/11/2015 to 31/1/2023
Arab Bank from 1994 2015

Cairo Amman Bank 1991 1994

Bank of Jordan 19891931

Chalrman of the Board of Directors of Al-Ahly Leasing Company

Chairman of the 8oard of Directors of Al-Ahly Financial Technoiogy Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Al-Ahly Microfinance Company

Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Company for Payment and Clearing Systems
Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Loan Guarantee Company

Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordan Capital and Investment Fund

Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordan Capital and Investment Fund

Member of the Board of Directors of the Tourism Business Company

Walid Mohammad Khader Hashem
Arab Bank

Jordanian

Member

28/06/2020

25/07/1958

BAC'e . e, voc 3

1981

Member of the Board of D'rectors of Security Investment Company

Arab 8ank d fferent sections of the bank from 1983 . 1987

Arab Bank Department of Banking Facilities from 1988 1999 from the Faciity Officer to the Facihity
Manager

Arab Bank Branch Manager 2000 2004

Arab Bank General Adm nistration - Credit Manager from 200S to 2009/4

Arab Bank Pub ¢ Adm nistration - Director of the Major Companies Unt Jordan and Pa est ne from
$/5/2009 to date

Deputy Genera Manager of Nationa Leasing Company (Member of Arab Bank Group) from 11/2011
8/2012

General Manager of Nationai Leas ng Company (Member of Arab Bank Group) from 9/2012 to date

Abedraboh mohammad Abedraboh
Alhabashneh to 23/5/2022

Socta security corporation

Jordan an

Me et

PLY WP

16/05/1962

1986

Member of the Board of D rectors of the Tourism Development and Projects Company from 2016-2017

Social Security Corporation / D rector of the Office of Legal Affairs
Dlrector ef the Control Department / Assistant General Director for Administrat ve Affa rs
Assi General for hes Affairs to date

Sh Abdel Majid Al Majali
Social security corporation t031/7/2022

Jordan an

Membes

28/06/2020

05/06/1972

BA mn Laws

Director of Legal Affa rs arsd Affairs - the Social Security Corporat on
From 9/3/1996 to date

Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh

Jordaman

Member

28/06/2020

25/08/1947

BA of Computer Science

British Universities

Engineering from the University of
University of Satford, UK

I of the Arab | I Hotels Company since 2003

of the Tourist i Company from 1996
Partner Director of Shair & Co for Investments 1976 1996
Royal Sdentific Society 1975 1976

Member of the Board of D'rectors of the International Company for Hotels and Commercial Markets

Member of the Board of Directors of Al-2ay Readymade Garment Industry
Member of the Board of Ditectors of the Arab Internationa Hotels Company

Nasha't Awwad Hasan AL Badaw

Social security corporation from24/5/2022

Jordanian

Member

24/05/2022

13/05/1967

Bachelor of Public Hea th

1983

D rector of nspection / Soaai Security corporation

From 4/10/1993 to date

Adnan Shaf q Jubra | Zyadat

Jordanian

Member

27/04/2021

01/11/1965

BA of Computer Saence
MA Marketing

1987
1994

Advanced Medical Equ pment Company from 1/10/1994 to 1/6/2007
Excellence Consulting Company from 7/1/2007 to date

Advanced Medical Equipment Company from 1/10/2010 to date

Member of Board of Directors of Al Zay Ready made Garments Manufactur ng

Nancy Moh'd Saced Khasawneh
Soc a secur ty corporation from 1/8/2022

Jordanian

Membes

01/08/2022

31/01/1969

Bachelor of Law

Master of Pol tical Science
Master of Law

Doctor of Law

1989

1992
2006

2014

Compassionate Adviser to the General Manager
Chalrman of the Committee for Quality Control of Insurance Declisions
Socia Securlty corporation from 21/6/1989 to date
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3 b the names and ranks of senior management and a brief profile os each o3 them:

Name Nationa ty Poston Designat'on Date | Date of B'rth Quatification GraduationYear Practical experience
A atthe C i ok i from 8/12/1970-21/6/1972
Farajallah Jubrall Tawflk Qubain lordantan Financial Manager 19/06/1976 01/12/1948 B A Po stical Sclence Econom ¢ 1976
Emp oyee of Grndlays Bank from 17/2/1973 to 18/6/1976
Jordan Worsted M1 is Co from 19/6/1976 to date
Samer suleiman Farhan Bawwab Jordanian Head of 23/10/1984 | 17/11/1960 1982 Accountant at Jordan Worsted M IsCo  from 23/10/1984 1/2/2009
Accounting and Head ofAccounting and Shareholders Worsted Mi Is Co from 1/2/1/2009 to &
Shareholders D’ploma in Banking Sc ences 2d of Accounting an areholders Worst s Co from 1/2/3/ todate
Department
Abdallah Moh'd Khal'd Al kurdi Jordanian  |Internal Aud tor 01/09/1989 | 09/08/1957 |Commercial h gh school 1976 Accountant at Jordan Worsted M ls Co from 1973/09/11 to 1982/09/21
A at Ota shan C y / Saudi Arabia
Accountant at Jordan Worsted Mills Co from 1989/09/01 31/12/2014
InternalAud tor at Jordan Worst Mills Co From 1/1/2015 to date
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3-C

1 -The Board of Directors was elected on 28/6/2020

2-The term of the Board of Directors is four years

3-The Main Company's Board of Directors holding during the fiscal year 2022 (six sessions)

4 —The Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company holding during the fiscal year 2022 (six sessions)

4 _ Statement of the names of the major shareholders who own shares of 5% or more of the company's

capital
Name 31/12/2021 31/12/2022

Number | percentage | Number | percentage
of Shares of Shares

Messrs. Nadim Yousef Muasher and 3081354 20,542% 3070522 20,470%

Muasher family

Messrs. Social Security Corporation 3000000 20,000% 3000000 20,000%

Messrs. Ahli Bank 1500000 10,000% 1500000 10,000%

Messrs. Arab Bank 1403746 9,358% 1403746 9,358%

Messrs. Arab International Hotels 1055428 7,036% 1055428 7,036%

Messrs. Jordan Investor Center Co 1240000 8,266% 1240000 8,266%

5 —Competitive status of the company:

There is no competitive situation for the company, after production stopped in the factory of our
subsidiary company in January 2020, and the company’s activity became “investment only.” Our
subsidiary company has delivered all the balances of previously produced military fabrics requirec
for the year 2022 on the specified dates, noting that there are no remaining Balances of fabrics
required for any party after all the contracted quantities have been delivered. Our sales to the local

markets this year amounted to 1,261,523 dinars, compared to 1,583,653 dinars in the previous

year.

6— A- The degree of dependence on specific suppliers who make up 10% of the total purchases: There is

no reliance on specific suppliers, locally or abroad, that make up 10% of the total purchases.

6—b— The degree of dependence on major customers who constitute 10% of the total sales or

revenues: -
No Name Dealing percentage from total
sales or company revenue
1- | Sales of military fabrics 96.82%
(General Directorate of the Gendarmerie Forces)
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7- The company enjoys the customs protection imposed on imported fabrics, which is 16 %Sales tax on
wool and wool blended and synthetic fabrics. Our company does not have any patents or franchise rights
and does not enjoy privileges for any of its products.

8- Decisions issued by the government, international organizations, or others that have a material
impact on the company’s work, products, or competitiveness:

A- There are no decisions issued by the government or international organizations or others that have a
material impact on the company’s work, products or competitiveness during the year 2022.

This is due to the cessation of production in the factory during the year 2020.

B- Due to the cessation of production in the factory in January 2020, the periodic examination of its
products in the company’s laboratory stopped, noting that the goods sold during the year 2022 were
subjected to the stages of periodic examination and were in conformity with the required specifications,
and there is nothing other than what was mentioned.

9—A- Appointment Policy: Appointment procedures are adopted on the basis of scientific certificates, experience

and competence in the field of work required through requests for employment or advertisement in local newspapers.

9-B-The number of employees of the company and their qualifications: -

Qualification Jordan worsted mills Co Jordan Fabric and worsted
(parent company) manufacturing Co. PLC
Bachelor’s Degree 3 3
Diploma 2 2
High school 2 4
Less than secondary - 5
Total Number of employees 7 14

9-C — Rehabilitation and training programs for employees of the company and the subsidiary during 2022

First: - parent Company: -

There were no qualification or training programs during the year, where all employees are qualified and

well experienced.

Second: The subsidiary company: There are no qualification or training prograims during the year, as all

employees are qualified and have long experience.
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9-D - Organizational chart - Main Company

Jordan Worsted Mills

Board of Directors

Chairman

Internal Auditor

Secretary General Manager
Financial Manager
Head Of accounting and shareholders
department
Accounting Contributors General movemgnt and
Fund services
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Jordan Fabric and Worsted Manufacturing Co Plc

Board of
Directors

Chairman

Internal Auditor

General Manager

|

Consultant for
development and
Public Relations

Financial Manager

Director of

|

personal

Personal

Head Of accounting
Department

Affairs

Secretarial

Security and
movement

Accountant and shareholders

Raw material
warehouse

Ready Good
Warehouse

Spare parts
warehouse

|

Technical director

Warping
Department

Twisting
Department

Weaving
Department

Inspection Of raw
good

Mending

Finishing

Inspection of
ready good
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Quality
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10- Risks that may be exposed to the company:

Theft, fire, earthquakes, floods, aircraft crashes, any natural disasters) and risks (political unrest) )
are all covered under comprehensive insurance policy. The factory is also equipped with early
warning and firefighting equipment according to the requirements of Civil Defense.
11-Achievements and Events ;-

First: Achievements achieved by the company during the fiscal year, which are covered by the
annual report.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which are covered by the annual

report are as follows: -

D

Annual sales 1,261,523

Annual net profit

A— Net sales profit (loss) after tax (662.855)

B- Net investment and other income 2.802.214
Total 2.139.359

C- Profits proposed for distribution to shareholders JOD 2,1 million JD (Only two million and one

hundred thousand JD) at a rate of 14%of the nominal value of shares.

Second: - Events: None

12- Financial implications of operations of a non-recurrent nature: -

Our subsidiary (Jordan Fabrics and worsted Manufacturing Company plc) signed an agreement on

12/6 /2022 with the British company Messrs. DM Textile Machinery to sell them all the textile machines in

the factory and their spare parts for an amount of 400.000 Euros (Four Hundred Thousand Only) upon

delivery EX Mill Floor. and the purchasing company bears all the expenses of dismantling, transporting,

and shipping these machines, and their spare parts outside Jordan, and our subsidiary company has

received the entire value of the machines, and their spare parts, amounting to 400,000 Euros.

Work is underway to complete the dismantling and shipment of the rest of the machines and their spare

parts, before the end of February 2023.

13- A-Realized profits and dividends attributable to shareholders resulting from local sales and investinent

profits were as follows: -

Shareholders' equity 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Paid-Up Capital 15000000 15000000 15000000 15000000 | 15000000
Realized profit 4193459 3608789 1674726 1577776 2195038
Distributed profits 3375000 2700000 2100000 2100000 2100000
Profit distribution ratio %22.5 %18 %14 %14 %14
Free shares distributed - -
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13-B-The shareholders' equity at the end of each of the years was as follows: -

Shareholders 'equity 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Paid up Capital 15000000 | 15000000 15000000 15000000 15000000
Additional Paid in capital 50000 50000 50000 50000 50000
Yarn rising prices reserve 2000000 2000000 - -
Statutory reserve 12532243 12532243 12532243 12532243 12532243
Voluntary reserve 10000000 | 10000000 | 10000000 10000000 10000000
Special reserve 7333000 7333000 73330000
Distributed Dividends 3375000 2700000 2100000 2100000 2100000
Investinent valuation reserve 3628610 381705 (6826043) (1355610) 944606
Retained earnings 9149782 9319022 10522677 17600679 17640038
Total of Shareholders 'equity 63068635 | 59315970 | 50711877 55927312 58266887
Stock prices 3,000 2,300 2,050 2.190 2.140
14- Analysis of the Company's financial position and results during the financial year: -
No | Financial ratios 31/122021 31/12/2022

1 | Earnings per share 0,099 0.143

2 | Return on paid up capital 9.9% 14.3%

3 Return on equity 2,67% 3.67%

4 Return on assets 2.62% 3.63%

5 Dividend payout ratio to paid up capital 14% 14%

6 | stock dividend 6.39% 6.54%

7 ratio of market value to book value 58,74% 55.67%

15- Developments and future plan: -

1- The company will follow up all efforts necessary to obtain the best return on its investients.

2 The subsidiary company will follow up all necessary efforts to obtain the best return on its investiments
and fixed assets.

3- The company expects to maintain a good financial position during the next year, depending on the

results of the profits distributed on its investments in companies listed on the Anunan Stock Exchange.

16— The auditors' fees for 2022 were as follows: — JoD

Audit fees for the accounts of Jordan Worsted mills Co 8500

Audit Fees for the Accounts of Jordan Fabrics and Worsted Manufacturing Co 8500
Total 17000
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-17-A The number of shares owned by the Board of Directors:—

Number of shares Numnber of Ownership and names of
of board members shares of board companies controlled by
and their metmbers and meibers of the Board of
No Name of the Board Member Position Nationality ) . 3
representatives their Directors
31/12/2021 representatives
31/12/2022
1 Muasher Investnient & Trading Co Chairman of 165985 165985 Muasher Investinent &
Irmad Yousef Issa Al-Mouasher Co Board of Jordanian 533802 533802 Trading Co
Directors
2 Ranco Diversified Investinents LLC Deputy 431831 431831 Ranco Diversified
Nadiin Yousef Issa Al-Muasher Chairman of 534750 534750 Investinents
the Board 1055428 1055428 Arab International Hotels
Directors Company
Jordanian 337854 337854 International Commpany for
Hotels and Connnercial
Markets
1240000 1240000 Jordan Investor Center
Cotnpany
Member / 10000 10000 -
3 Saiir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat General Jordanian
Mauager
RajaiMuasher&Brothers Co Member . 400 400 -
4 Jordanian
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Al-Muasher 42148 42148
5 Social Security corporation Meinber Jordanian 3000000 3000000
Shaian Abdel Majid Salini Al Majali Jordanian - -
to 31/7/2022
Dr. Nancy Moh’d Sa’eed Khasawueh Jordanian - -
from 1/8/2022
6 Abedraboh Mohanunad Abedraboh
Habashneh to 23/5/2022
Nashat Awwad Hasan Al-Badawi
from 24/5/2022
7 Alli Bank Member Jordanian 1500000 1500000
Dr.AhmadAwad Abed AlHalitn-Hussien Jordanian - - -
8 Arab Bank Meinber Jordanian 1403746 1403746
Walid Moli'd Khader Haslietix Jordanian -
9 Suhail Jamil Al-Mnasher&Brothers Co Member Jordanian 2404 2404
Basim Jamil Issa Al-Muasher Jordanian 1437 1437 -
10 Dr. Jack Nicola Yacoub kattan Menber Jordauian 58810 58810 -
11 Issani Ali Suleisnan Al-Bilbeisi Member Jordanian 460000 500564
12 Bassain Farah Sulietnan Maayeh Member Jordanian 400 400
3 Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat Meinber Jordanian 500 500
From 27/4/2021
Total 10779495 10820059
17- B- shares owned by senior inanagestent: -
Nusnber of Nusnber of
No Name Position Nationality shiares shares
31/12/2021 31/12/2022
1 Farajallah jubrail Tawfik Qubain Financial Manager Jordanian - -

. Head of Accounting and -
2 Sanmer Suleiinan Farhan Bawwab Jordauian

Sharehiolders Departinent

3 Abdallah Moh'd Khalid AL Kurdi

There are no contributions in companies controlled by senior tnanagement personnel

Internal Auditor Jordanian -
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17-C The number of shares owned by the relatives of the directors and senior management: -

Nunber of Nuimnber of
No Naine Position Nationality shares shares
31/12/2021 31/12/2022
1 Imad YousefIssa Al-Mouasher Representative Jordanian
Nadinwadia Khalil halasa wife
2 Nadiin Yousef Issa Al-Muasher Representative Jordanian
Rania 1ssa mbada dallal wife 17750 17750
3 Samir Odtaallah Dakhlala Alaiuat Member Jordanian
Rima Khalaf Mansour Ghishan Wife 12000 12000
4 Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muashier Representative Jordanian
Nataly Michel Tawfiq Ayoub Wife
Rajaei Son
Sirin Daughter
Moua Daughter - -
5 Shaiman Abdel Majid Saliin Al Majali To 31/07/2022 Representative Jordanian
Khawla khalil abdelqader al nashash Wife
Aoan Son - -
Hamza Son
6 Nashr’at Awwad Hasan Albadawi From 24/5/2022 Representative - -
Layan Ali Jadallah Altiti Wife Jordanian
Mohanunad Son Jordanian
7 Abed rabo mohanunad abed rabo allhabashneh To 23/5/2022 Representative
Reem abdelhameed husaien mubaideen wife Jordanian -
8 Dr.Nancy Mol’d Sa’eed Khasawneh From 1/8/2022 Representative - -
Naseein Mohartunad Abedalkareem Alkhasawneh Husband Jordanian
9 D.Ahimad Awad Abed AlHalini-Al-Hussien Representative
Satuar omar Suliman al Otaibe Wife Jordanian - -
10 Walid Moh'd Khader Hashiein Representative Jordanian
Khawla awad Muhanunad asad Wife
Alunad son
11 Basim Jamil Issa Al-Muasher Representative Jordanian
Ghada fawzi deeb anumari Wife - -
12 Dr. Jack Nicola Yacoub kattan Menber Jordanian
Batrisha games gameskenady Wife
75000 75000
13 Issain Ali Suleiman Al-Bitbeisi Member Jordanian
Fareedeh fareed amin jwaihan Wife 1054 1054
14 Bassam Farah Sulieinan Maayeh Member Jordanian
Aida Fuad Awad Mansour wife - -
15 Adnan Shafiq Jubrail Zyadat From 27/4/2021
Hana Emil Khalil Mdanat Wife Jordanian - -
Sanad - -
16 Farajaltah jubrail Tawfik Qubain - -
17 Sanier Suleinnan Farhan Bawwab - - -
18 Abdallah Moh'd Khatid AL Kurdi
Najwa Muhannnad Salameh al amour wife Jordanian
Total 105804 105804

There are no contributions in companies controlled by relatives of members of the Board of Directors and

relatives of senior management employees
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18~ A-Benefits and rewards enjoyed by both the Chairman and the members of the Board of Directors

(Parent company)
No position Annual Annual Annual Annual Total
Name salaries | transportation | bonuses travel annual
allowance expenses benefits
1 Muasher Investment & Trading Co chairman 4800 5000 9800
Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher
2 Ranco Multiple Investments Deputy of 4800 5000 9800
Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher Chairman
3 Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat General 60000 4800 5000 69800
Manager
4 | Rajai Muasher & Brothers Co Member 4800 5000 - 9800
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher
Social Security corporation Member * 9600 10000 19600
5 Represented by:
A- Shaman Abdel Majid Salim Al Majali to
31772022
B-Dr.Nancy Mohammad Sa’eed
Khasawneh From 1/8/2022
6 C- Abedrabo Mohammad habashneh to
23/5/2022
D- Nasha’at Awwad Hasan Albadawi
From 24/5/2022
7 | Subhail Jamil Al-Muasher&Brothers Co Member 4800 5000 9800
Basim Jamil Issa Al-Mouasher
Dr. Jack Nicola Yacoub Kattan Member 4800 5000 9800
9 Arab Bank Member 4800 5000 9800
Walid Mohammad Khader Hashem
10 | Ahli Bank Member 4800 5000 9800
D.Ahmad Awad Abed Al Halim Al-
Hussien
11 | Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Belbesi Member 4800 5000 9800
from28/6/2020
12 | Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh Member - 4800 5000 - 9800
13 | Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat Member 4800 3411 8211
14 | Late Marwan Suleiman SaliemZwaydeh To Member - 1068 - 1068
19/3/2021
Total 60000 62400 64479 - 186879

1- 50000 J.D Paid to Chairman of Board of Directors for representation allowance

* The annual transportation allowance and annual bounces are paid directly to the Social Security Corporation
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18- B- Benefits and rewards for senior management (The parent company)

Total Annual Annual Total
Annual
No Namne Position annual | transportation travel annual
bonuses
salaries allowance expense | benefits
1 | Farajallah jubrail Tawfik Qubain Financial 10200 - - - 10200
manager
2 | Samer Suleiiman Farhan Bawwab Head of 1860 - - - 1860
Accounting and
Shareholders
Departinent
3 | Abdallah Moh"d Khalid AL Kurdi Internal 1860 - - - 1860
Auditor
Total 13920 - - - 13920

18- C Benefits and rewards of the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors (subsidiary company)

Total Annual Total
Annual
No Name position annual | transportation annual
bonuses
salaries allowance benefits
Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher chairman - 4800 5000 9800
2 Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher Deputy of - 4800 5000 9800
Chairman
3 Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Member/General | 196252 4800 5000 206052
Manager
Nazih Salah Attallah Sehaimat Member - 4800 5000 9800
Dr. Jack Nicola Yacoub Kattan Member - 4800 5000 9800
6 | Jordan Armed Forces / Arab Army Member 4800 5000 9800
Represented: - Brigadier General Ala'a
Mohammad Saleh Al-shbailat
7 | Social Security corporation Member * 4800 5000 9800
Represented by:
A- Abedraboh Mohammad Abedraboh
Habashneh to 23/5/2022
B- Shaman Abdel Majid Saliim Al Majali
From24/5/2022 To 31/7/2022
C- Nasha’at Awwad Hasan Albadawi
from 1/8/2022
Total 196252 33600 35000 264852

*The annual transportation allowance and bonuses are paid directly to the Social Security Corporation.

Group.

1- 50000 J.D Paid to Chairman of Board of Directors for representation allowance.

2-A car is allocated for the use of the general manager.
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18- D- Benefits and rewards of senior management (subsidiary)

No Name Position Total Annual Annual Total
annual | ¢ransportation | bonuses annual
salaries allowance benefit

1 Farajallah jubrail Financial manager 44923 44923
Tawfik Qubain
2 Sammer Suleiman Head of Accounting and 18198 18198
Farhan Bawwab Shareholders Departinent
3 Abdallaly Molr'd Internal Auditor 17888 - - 17888
Khalid AL Kurdi
Total 81009 81009

19~-Donations

No Details J.D
1 Gentlemen, the General Command of the Jordanian Armed Forces / Arab Army - in-kind donations 85515
2 | Gentlemen, the Hashemite Comumission for military casualties - in-kind donations 16228
3 Gentlemen, the National Authority for Demining and Rehabilitation - in-kind donations 6906
4 | Jordanian charities during the holy month of Ramadan and throughout the year - in-kind 37458
donations
5 | Wings of Hope Society - *cash donations 31000
6 | Public Security Directorate / fees for students on scholarships to the University College 737
of Jordan for tourist hotel education — cash donations
Total 177844

*The Wings of Hope Association supported various programs and activities in 2022 according to the

association’s objectives and the directives of the administrative body in the following areas: ~
- :First: - The field of education

The association provided forty tuition fees for underprivileged students who suffer from a difficult
economic situation by paying the tuition fees of public and private schools and universities distributed in
Irbid, Ajloun, Madaba, Jerash, Karak and other areas in the Capital Governorate, where the majors that
were supported varied between tourism studies and hotel inanagement accounting, heritage resource

.management, nursing, biophysics, water and environimental engineering, and others

The association implemented training programs and teaching archaeological storytelling skills for a
number of young people working in the field of tourism. The participants were selected from those who
provide tourist services in the Wadi Rum Natural Association. A dialogue session was held in the Wadi
Rum Women's Association to discuss the role of women in society and find job opportunities to serve

tourism. in the area and help support the family

Among the developmental association programs in southern Jordan, a training program was implemented

in English language for tourism for a number of women of the Desi Basin Villages Association.
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.Second: The field of health

¢ The association provided a number of wheelchairs and medical imattresses for two women with special needs in
Madaba cammp. The Beit Al-Liqa Center in Madaba was also provided with physiotherapy equipment, which in turn

.takes care of a large munber of people with special needs in the city of Madaba and the surrounding villages

* The Association treated a girl suffering froin hearing impainnent who lives in the south of the Kingdom. The
treatiment led to the girl recovering 80% of her sense of hearing after installing a medical stethoscope and giving her

.the required treatiment

¢ The Association provided a nuinber of beds, wardrobes and curtains for one of the prematurity rooms in Queen

.Rania Al-Abdullah Hospital in the Al-Taibah area in the Petra District

. Third: The field of cultural heritage

* The Society implemented an awareness program on the importance of preserving the cultural heritage, which was
designed by specialists in the National Society for the Preservation of Petra, where 35 participants were selected from
students between the ages of 7-12 years, 30 women fromn Ira and Yarqa, and 22 young inen and women from tourism
students. This is part of an integrated theoretical and field program to raise awareness of cultural heritage sites and

.preserve them

* The association, in cooperation with the Jordan Heritage Foundation, iimplemented a project and revived the
musical heritage, where it worked on documenting and reviving songs from the Jordanian heritage. It began with

scientific research and docuinenting the story of each of these popular songs circulated in the past.
- Fourth: the field of environment

-With the support of the Jordan National Bank, the association established a solar energy project in the Al-Haidan
Visitor Center in the Mujib Reserve, which was built by the Royal Court to support sustainable environinental

.projects that attract tourisin and environmental adventure in the Kingdom

* In the field of environmental awareness and with the aiin of spreading and enhancing environmental awareness
among students in preserving nature, the association implemented a cleaning campaign in a number of natural sites
that witness a tourist boom in the Wadi Ruun Nature Reserve in cooperation with the reserve inanagement and with

the participation of 55 students and a munber of students’ parents, supervisors and vohumteers in the region
JFifth: The field of sports

* Supporting the 10th Football Championship of Our Lady of the Mountain, which was held at Wings of Hope

Stadiwun in Anjara / Ajloun Governorate. Sports teams from different regions of the Kingdom participated in this

.tournamment
* Maintenance work for Wings of Hope stadimm in Anjara
Supporting the Al-Salt Football Club team to participate in a training course in the State of Kuwait

* Supporting the Athletics Chaimpionship and the Chess Championship for the Jordanian Federation of Deaf Sports,

in support of the Association for Sports, especially groups with special needs, as Wings of Hope presented medals and

cups to the winners and participants
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Sixth: Traffic Safety

* The association continued working on the traffic awareness program that it started with the Jordanian Society for
the Prevention of Road Accidents two years ago, after equipping the Ayman Al-Muasher Hall for Traffic Safety in
2020, rehabilitating the traffic park, and equipping the association with training vehicles for children, as 67 lectures
and activities were ituplemented for school and university students in the Ayman Al-Muasher Hall For traffic safety
as well as in universities and schools to raise awareness of traffic safety and methods of safe use of roads by the staff of
the Jordanian Society for the Prevention of Road Accidents and specialists from the official authorities and the Traffic

Institute

* The association's participation in a global program through social media and broadcasting awareness inessages with
the participation of young people from different countries of the world to demand the responsible authorities and

goveruments to enact legislation and implement the necessary penalties to reduce traffic violations, speeding and

.irresponsible driving
:Seventh: Other activities and events

* The association pledged to annually secure the Children’'s Hoine in Anjara in Ajloun Governorate with food and

.supplies, as it houses 35 orphan children and adolescents

* On the occasion of the holy month of Ramadan, the association provided food parcels, and with the contribution of

.a number of the association’s friends, 44 food parcels and various supplies were prepared

¢ It also held an Iftar party at the Petra Marriott Hotel, and 42 children and young people from the villages of Al-
Beyda and Ain Amon in the Petra District were invited. The party included an entertainiment program and the

.distribution of gifts to the invitees

* With a generous donation from the Jordanian Fabric and Worsted Manufacturing company, 27 cloth dresses,

equivalent to 300 men's suits, were distributed to a number of centers and churches on the occasion of the glorious

.holidays

* Supporting various student activities. It also provided support to the Jordanian Sports Federation for the Deaf and
People with Special Needs. It also contributed to the children's carmival event that was held in Al-Hussein Gardens in

Amman. By providing meals and gifts to the 250 participating school students from among the orphans

20 - There are no contracts, projects, or engagements made by the company with sister, subsidiary, or
allied companies, or with the chairman of the board of directors, members of the board, the general
manager, any employee of the company, or their relatives.

21- A~ The coinpany contributes to protecting the enviromment and serving the local community by its
conmunitment to iimplement the laws and instructions prevailing in Jordan related to the environment. As it is
conunitted to an annnal contract with the municipality of Rusaifa to transport waste.

It also sells solid waste such as cardboard and plastic to other parties that recycle it. The water is also drained to the
sewage networks directly and with the approval of the official authorities.

B- The company's contribution to serving the local community:

The company has no contribution to serving the local community, except for the in~kind donations made by the

corupany to charitable organizations in the local cornmunity
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C-The required declarations: -

1- The Board of Directors declares that there are no material matters that may affect the continuity of the
company during the following fiscal year.

2- The Board of Directors acknowledges responsibility for preparing the financial statements and

providing an effective control system in the company.

Mr. Imad Yousef Issa Muasher Mr. Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher
Chairman of the Board of Directors Deputy Chairiman of the Board of Director
A representative of Moasher Investiment A representative of Ranco Diversified

and Trade Company Investinents Company

Mr. Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Mr. Walid Muhanunad Khader Hashem
General Manager Arab Bank Representative

Mr. Basim Jamil Issa Al Muasher Dr. Ahimned Awad Abdel Halim Al-Hussein

representative of the Suhail Jamil Al Muasher A representative of the Jordan Ahli Bank

and Brothers Company

Dr Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan Mr. Salih Rajai Salih Al Muasher

representative Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Co.

Mr. Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Balbisi Mr. Bassam Farah Suliemman Maayeh

Mr. Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat

Social Security Corporation representatives

Mr.Nashat Awwad Hasan Al-Badawi Dr.Nancy Mohamunad Sa’eed Khasawneh

3- We, the undersigned, acknowledge the correctness and accuracy of the information and data provided

in this annual report.

Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Farajallah Gubrail Qubain
Chairiman of the Board director General Manager Financial Manager
representative of Moasher Investment

and Trade Company
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22-According to the provisions of Article No. (17) of the Corporate Governance Instructions listed for the year 2017,
we show the followings: —
A- After the Board of Directors reviewed the instructions of the corporate governance of the listed joint stock
companies for the year 2017 and their requirements, all necessary measures were taken to implement these
instructions such as completing the formation of commmittees, holding its ineetings, discussing its decisions, as well as
what related to the meetings of the board of directors, general assembly meetings and other requirements.

In addition, a new board of directors was elected at the meeting of the General Assembly of shareholders held on

28/6/2020, cousisting of thirteen ineinbers, including six independent meimbers.

B- The natnes of the current and resigned members of the Board of Directors during the year 2022:

1- Messrs. Moasher Investinent and Trade company not executive / not-independent
represented by Mr. Irnad Yousef Issa Mouasher

2~ Messrs., Ranco Diversified Investments Company, not-executive / not-independent
represented by Mr. Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher

3- Messrs., The Social Security Corporation not-executive / not-independent

Represented:

A-Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Salim Al-Majali to 31/7/2022

B-Dr Nancy Mohanunad Sa’eed Khasawneh from 1/8/2022

4- Messrs. the Social Security Corporation not-executive / not-independent

represented :

A-Mr.Abedraboh Mohammad Abedraboh Habashneh to 23/5/2022

B-Nasha’at Awwad Hasan Albadawi from 24/5/2022

5- Messrs., Jordan Ahli Bank not-executive / not independent

represented by Dr. Alunad Awad Abdel Halim Al-Hussein

6- Messrs. Arab Bank not-executive / not-independent
represented by Mr. Walid Muhanunad Khader Hashem

7- Messrs. Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company not-executive [ independent
represented by Mr. Salelt Rajaei Saleh Muasher

8- Messrs. Suhail Jamil Al Muasher and Brothers Company not-executive / independent
represented by Mr. Basiin Jamil Issa Mnasher

9- Mr. Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat General manager Executive / not independent

10- Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan not-executive/ independent

11- Mr. Issamm Ali Suleitnan Al-Bilbeisi not-executive /independent

12- Mr.Bassam Farah Suleiman Maayeh not-executive / independent

13- Mr.Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat not-executive / independent

Note that there are no resigned memnbers during the year 2022.
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C- The names of the representatives of the legal board members:
1- Messrs. Moasher Investment and Trade Company
represented by Mr. Immad Yousef Issa Monasher- Chairman of the Board of Directors,
not-executive / not-independent
2- Messrs. Ranco Diversified Investments Company
represented by Mr. Nadim Yusuf Issa Muasher -Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors
not-executive / not-independent
3- Messrs. Social Security Corporation and represents by: =
A - Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Saliim Al Majali - to 31/7/2022 not-executive / not-independent
B- Dr.Nancy Mohammad Sa’eed Khasawneh from 1/8/2022
C- Mr.Abedraboh Mohammad Abedraboh Habashneh to 23/5/2022 not-executive / not-independent
D- Nasha’at Awwad Hasan Albadawi from 24/5/2022

4- Messrs.. Jordan Ahli Bank

Represented by -
Dr. Ahimed Awad Abdel-Halim Al-Hussein, not-executive / not-independent
5— Messrs. Arab Bank :-
represented by Mr. Walid Muhammad Khader Hashem, not-executive / not-independent

6- Messrs. Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company
Represented by Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher not-Executive / Independent
7- Messrs. Suhail Jarnil Al Muasher and Brothers Company
Represented by Mr. Bassem Jameel Issa Muasher, not-executive / independent

D- The executive positions in the company and the names of the persons who occupy it: -

1- General Manager: Mr. Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alainat.
2- Financial Manager - Mr. Farajallah jubrail Tawfik Qubain
3- Internal Auditor: Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Khaled Al-Kurdi
4- Head of the Accounting and Shareholders Department: Mr. Samer Suleiman Farhan Bawwab
E- Memberships of Boards of Directors held by a member of the Board of Directors in public joint-stock companies: First: - Mr.
Imad Yousef Issa Muasher / Representative of Al Muasher Investment and Trade Company

1- Arab International Company for Hotels

2- International Company for Hotels and Malls

3- Jordan Ahli Bank Company
Second: - Mr. Nadim Yousef Issa Mutasher / Representative of Ranco Diversified Investinents Company

1- Al-Zay Ready Wear Manufacturing Company

2- International Company for Hotels and Malls

3- Arab International Company for Hotels

4- Jordan Ahli Bank
Third: - Mr. Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat

1- Arab International Company for Hotels
Fourth: - Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan
1- Al Zay Ready Wear Manufacturing Company

2-Masafat Company for Specialized Transportation

3-Arab Insurance Company — Jordan

Fifth: - Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Muasher / Representative of the Suhail Jamil Al Muasher and Brothers Company
1- The Leading Company for Business and Projects

2- Arab International Hotels Company

Sixth: - Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher / Representative of Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Company
1- Arab International Company for Hotels

Seventh: - Mr. Adnan Shafiq Jubrail Zyadat
1- Al-Zay Ready Wear Mannfacturing Company
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F- The name of the Governance Liaison Officer: - Mr. Samer Suleitman Farhan Bawwab
G- The names of the comnmittees emanating from the Board of Directors:
First: Four conunittees emerge from the Board of Directors according to the provisions of the corporate governance
instructions listed for the year 2017, and they are as follows: -
1- The Audit Comunittee
2- The Nomination and Retmmeration Conunittee
3- The Governance Commiittee
4- The Risk Management Comunittee
Second: - In addition to two commiittees formed by the Board of Directors, as follows: -
1- The Investments Connnittee
2- Land Sale Conmumittee
H- The name of the Chairman and members of the Audit Conmmittee and a summmary of their qualifications and
experience: —
1 Suhail Jamil Munasher and Brothers Company - Committee Chairman (non-executive - independent) Represented of
Basim Jamil Issa Muasher
Bachelor of Business Adiministration - Chairman of the Leading Company for Business and Projects
2- Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Bilbisi (not-executive - independent).
Diploma in Business Administration, Vice Chairman of the Jordanian Tanning Company 1982-2013, Vice Chairman of the
Jordanian Tobacco and Cigarettes Company 1990-1999.
3- Social Security Corporation - Member - (not-executive / not-iitdependeit)
Represented by — A- Mr. Abd Rabbo Muhanmnad Abd Rabbo Al-Habashneh to 23/5/2022
Bachelor of Law - Director of Legal Affairs Office — Director of Control Department / Assistant
General Director for Administrative Affairs — Assistant General Manager for Branch Affairs.
B- Nasha’at Awwad Hasan Albadawi from 24/5/2022 Bachelor of Public Health / Director of Inspection
4- Jordan Ahli Bank (not-executive / not-independent)
represented by Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel Haliin Al-Hussein
PhD in Finance - Work in the banking sector from 1989 to date. Senior vice president of the CEO / General Manager at Al
Ahli Bank from 1/11/2015 and to date.
I- The name of the chairman and members of the Nomination and Remuneration Conunittee, the Governance Committee
and the Risk Managemnient Conunittee: -
First: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee. which cousists of the following:
1- Jack Nicola Yaqoub Kattan Commiittee Chairinan (not-executive / independent)
2- The Social Security Corporation (not-executive /not independent) Represented by
A- Mr. Shaman Abdul Majeed Salim Al Majali to 31/7/2022 .
B- Dr.Nancy Mohammad Sa’eed Khasawneh from 1/8/2022
3-Mr. Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat (not-executive /independent)
second: — The Governance Cominittee, which consists of the followings: -
1- Bassamn Farah Suleiman Maayeh Committee Chairnan (not-executive / independent)
2- Messrs. Rajaei Al Muasher and Brothers Conmipany  ( not-executive / independent)
represented by Mr. Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher
3- Mr. isam Ali Sulaeiman Bilbeisi (not-executive /independent)
Third: The Risk Managenient Comunittee, which consists of the following:
1-Mr. Adnan Shafiq Jubrail ZyadatCommittee Chairntan (not executive / independent)
2- Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoub kattan (not executive / independent)

3- Mr.Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alainat (executive / not-independent)
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J- The number of permanent comunittee meetings during the fiscal year 2022 with an indication of the members present

First: - The Audit Committee: The committee held four meetings during the fiscal year 2022, as shown below: -

The date of the sessions during the year 2022

Namies the members of the Board of Directors

1- February 17-April 20 - July 17-Oct
Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher&Brothers Co
Basim Jamil Issa Mouasher Presence Presence Presence Presence
Social Security Corporation
A-Abdrabuh Muhanunad Abdrabuh Habashneh p P B
t023/5/2022 resence resence
B- Nashat Awwad Hasan Albadawi from 24/5/2022

Presence Presence

Ahli Bank
Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel-Halim Al-Hussein Presence Presence Presence Presence
Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Balbisi Presence Presence Presence Presence

Second: - Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The committee held two meetings during

the fiscal year 2022, as shown below: -

The date of the sessions during the year 2022
Namee the members of the Board of Directors

14-july 21-nov.
Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoubkattan Presence Presence
Social Security Corporation :—
Shaman Abdel Majid Al Majali to 31/7/2022 Presence -
Dr.Naticy Mohanunad Sa’eed Khasawneh from 1/8/2022 - Presence
Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat Presence Presence

Third: - Governance Committee: The comumittee held two meetings during the fiscal year 2022,

as shown below: -

Name the members of the Board of Directors

The date of the sessions during the year 2022

14-july 28-nov.
Bassam Farah Sulieman Maayeh Presence Presence
Rajai Muasher& Brothers Co
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher Presence Presence
Issam Ali Suleiman Al-Belbesi Presence Presence

Fourth: - Risk Management Comunittee: The committee held two meetings during the fiscal year

2022, as shown below: -

The date of the sessions during the year 2022
Naine the members of the Board of Directors
14-July 21 Nov
Adnan Shafiq JubrailZyadat Presence Presence
Dr. Jack Nicola Yaqoubkattan Presence Presence
Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Presence Presence

K - The number of meetings of the audit committee with the auditor during the year: -

The Audit Commiittee led one meeting on 1/2/2022with the external auditor of the company. Messrs. Deloitte & Tonche
(Middle East) - Jordan. This nieeting was attended by: - Basein Jamil Issa Al Muasher, representative of Suhail Jamil Al
Moasher& Brothers Company, Abd Rabbo Muhammad Abd Rabbo Al Habashneh Representative of the Social Security
Corporation, Dr. Ahmed Awad Abdel Halimm Al Hussein, representative of the National Bank of Jordan, and Issam Ali

Suleiman Al-Belbeisi. This was done without the presence of any of the senior executive management or its representatives.
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L-The company's board of directors held six meetings during the fiscal year 2022, and the following is

a statement of the board members present for each meeting with the date of the session:

The name of the members of the

The date of meetings during year 2022

Board of Directors 2-FEB | 18- APR | 21-july 18-sep. 18-oct. 30-nov.
Muasher Investment & Trading Co
Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher
Ranco Diversified Investiments LLC P b b
. resence | Presenc Presenc resenc Presenc senc
Nadim Yousef Issa Muasher esence esence e esence | absence
Samir Odtaalla Dakhlala Alamat Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
D. Jack Nicola Yacoub kattan Presence | absence | Presence | Presence | Presence | absence
Ahli Bank
D .Ahmad Awad Abed AL Halim- Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Al-Hussein
Arab Bank b b b b b
. absence | Presence | Presenc resence | Presence | Presence
Walid Moh'd Khader Hashem esence
Suhail Jamil Al-Muasher&Brothers Co
. . Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Basim Jamil Issa Muasher
RajaiMuasher&Brothers Co
.. Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Saleh Rajaei Saleh Muasher
Issam Ali Suleirmnan Al-Bilbeisi Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Social Security Corporation
representatives: —
Shaman Abdel Majid Salirn Al Majali to Presence | Presence | Presence
31/7/2022
Dr.Nancy Mohanunad Sa’eed Khasawneh - - - Presence | Presence | Presence
from 1/8/2022
Abdrabuh Muhanunad Abdrabuh Habashneh Presence | Presence
To 23/5/2022
- Nashat Awwad Hasan Albadawi from - - Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
24/5/2022
Bassain Farah Sulietman Maayeh Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence
Adnan Shafiq Jubrail Zyadat Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence | Presence

Imad Yousef Issa Mouasher

Chairman of Board of Directors

Rep. Of Mouasher Investinent & Trading Co
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And now that you have heard the report of the Board of Directors supported by the consolidated financial

statements for this year, we attribute to the General Assembly the approval of the following:-
I-Reading of the minutes of the previous session.
2- vote on and approve the Board of Directors’ report and the future plan for 2023.

3- vote on and approve the company’s auditors” report on the financial statements for the year ending on 31

December 2022.
4- vote and approve the financial statements.

5-Approving the distribution of dividends to shareholders at the rate of 14% of the nominal value of the

shares.

6-Reading a brief report on the work of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors based on

the provisions of Article 6/E of the corporate governance instructions for listed joint stock companies for
the year 2017.

7-Absolving the Board of Directors of liability for the year ending on 31 December 2022.
8-Electing the company’s auditors for the fiscal year 2023 and determining their fees

9- Pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (c) and (1) of item 5 of the organizational procedures for
convening meetings of public bodies issued by His Excellency the Minister of Industry, Trade and Supply.
each shareholder has the right to ask questions and inquiries electronically before the date set for the
meeting through the e-mail and the electronic link referred to in the invitation to respond to them knowing
that the shareholder Whoever holds shares of not less than 10% of the shares represented in the meeting has

the right to ask questions and inquiries during the meeting.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AM/ 008513

To the Shareholders of

Jordan Worsted Mills Company

(A Public Shareholding Limited Company)
Rusaifeh  The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consclidated financial statements of Jordan Worsted Mills Company and its
subsidiary (together “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Jordan Worsted Mills Company
Financial Statements for the Year Ended 2022

Deloi te

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters, in our professional judgment, are the most significant matters in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters:

Valuation of Unquoted securities

Investments in securities includes
investments in unquoted shares in the
amount of JD 12,137,087 as at 31

December 2022. These instruments are
classified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

As disclosed in  note 4 significant
accounting judgements and uncertain
estimates, the valuation of investments in
unquoted securities uses inputs other than
observable market data and therefore are
inherently subjective. 1t also requires
significant judgement to be applied by

How our audit addressed the key audil
matter

We obtained an understanding of the process
adopted by management to determine the fair
value of unquoted securities.

We assessed the design and implementation of
controls in this area of the audit.

We agreed the valuations performed by
management to the amount reported in the
financial statements.

We assessed if the valuation methodology and
estimates wused in the wvaluations were
reasonable in the circumstances and were in

management in determining the
appropriate valuation methodology and use
of various assumptions like cash flows,
discount rates, market risk adjustments
etc. The wvaluations were performed by
management of the Company.

compliance with the requirements of IFRSs with
the assistance of our internal specialists.

We agreed the inputs into the valuation to the
latest audited or reviewed financial statements,
Given the inherent subﬂ'ectivity and where applicable.

judgement required in the valuation of such
unquoted investments that are classified
under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, we

determined this to be a key audit matter.

We reperformed the arithmetical accuracy of the
valuations.

We considered if the valuations indicated any
bias exhibited by management.

We assessed the disclosures in the financial
statements relating to this matter against the
requirements of IFRSs.

Other Matter

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation of the statutory financial
statements which are in the Arabic Language to which references should be made.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information which comprises information in the annual
report excluding the consolidated financial statements and the independent auditor's report
thereon. Furthermore, we expect the annual report to be made available to us after the date of
our audit report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other
information, and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information when it becomes available to us. In doing so, we consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on
effectiveness of internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the Company’s and its subsidiary’s audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safequard procedures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year, and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The Group maintains proper accounting records duly organized and i line. with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend that the G(?Zeral As‘s:embly of
Shareholders approve these consolidated financial statements.

Amman Jordan Deloitte & Tou M.E Jordan
February 8, 2023

——



JORDAN WORSTED MILLS COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

RUSAJFEH - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash on hand and at banks
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable and other debt balances
Finished goods- Net
Spare parts and various supplies Net
Assets held for sale - Net

Total Current Assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortized cost
Investment in affiliate company

Total Investments

Fixed Assets:
Land at cost
Fixed assets at cost
(Less):; Accumulated depreciation
Net fixed assets excluding land
Total Fixed Assets
Total Assets

Current Liabilities:

Due to banks

Payables and other credit balances

Income tax and National Contribution provision
Total Current Liabilities

End-of service indemnity provision
Total Liabilities

OWNERS' EQUITY
Authorized and paid-up capital
Additional paid-in capital
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve

Investment revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

Total Owners' Equity

Total Liabilities and Owners' Equity

Chairman of Board of Directors

December 31,

Note 2021 2022
D D
5 1,815,190 2,957,345
6 2,364,991 2,370,061
7 77,501 122,390
8 491,430
9 - 16,410
10 2,832
4,260,514 5,957,636
11 51,771,690 47,767,560
12 2,000,000 1,700,000
13 583,588 1,429,920
54,355,278 50,897,480
96,344 96,344
1,199,033 4,913,440
(1,090,166) (4,846,088)
108,867 67,352
14 205,211 163,696
58,821,003 57,018,812
15 126,893 512,355
16 331,771 411,503
a/25 31,781 55,607
490,445 979,465
17 63,671 112,035
554,116 1,091,500
a/18 15,000,000 15,000,000
50,000 50,000
b/18 12,532,243 12,532,243
c/18 10,000,000 10,000,000
944,606 (1,355,610)
20 19,740,038 19,700,679
58,266,887 55,927,312
58,821,003 57,018,812

General Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH IT AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT.




RDA T

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

MPANY

RUSAIFER - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Net sales
Cost of Sales:
Finished goods-beginning of the period before provision
Cost of production
Cost of Goods Available for Sale
Finished goods-end of the perlod before provision
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
General and administrative expenses

Operating (Loss)

Net gain of financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss

Dividends revenue from financial assets at fair value through

comprehensive income

Income from financial assets at amortized cost

Other revenue - Net

Recovered from provision for slow moving flnished goods

Recovered from provision for slow moving spare parts
Profit for the Year before Income Tax

Income tax and National Contribution tax expense
Profit for the Year

Earnings per share for the year attributable to shareholders

Chairman of Board of Directors

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH IT AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT.

Note

21

22

23

11

24

b/25

26

For the Year Ended December 31,

2022 2021
D 10
1,261,523 1,583 653
841,430 1,612,950
129,864 268 110
971,294 1,881,060
(57,850) (841,430)
913,444 1,039,630
348,079 544,023
(955,255) (815,400)
(607,176) (271,377)
92,367 443,003
2,044,796 1,158,420
92,983 88,980
273,515 158,750
292,150
6,403
2,195,038 1,577,776
(55,679) (79,742)
2,139,359 1,498,034
-/14 -/10
General Manager



JORDAN WORSTED MILLS COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

U - IT F N

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended December 31,

2022 2021
b[»} D
Profit for the year 2,139,359 1,498,034
Comprehensive income items:
Items not subsequentiy transferable to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss:

Changes in investment valuation reserve 2,300,216 6,039,627

Total Comprehensive Income 4,439,575 7,537,661
Chairman of the Board of Directors General Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH IT AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT .
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RDAN W TED M MPANY
2 PANY
RUSAIFEH - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit for the year before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreclation of fixed assets
(Gain) from the sale of fixed assets

(Gain) from the sale aof assets held for sale

End-of-service indemnity provision

Accounts recelvable and other debit balances
Miiitary and security receivabies

Spare parts and other toois-Net
(Decrease) increase In current Liabilities:
Payables and other credit balances

End of service indemnity paid
Net Cash Flows from Operating Actlvities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income
(Purchase) Financlai assets at amortized cost

Matured Financial assets at amortized cost

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets
Proceeds from the sale of assets held for sale
(Purchase) of fixed assets

Net Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
(Decrease) in due to banks
(Decrease) in short-term loans

Change in non controiling Interest dividends
Net Cash (Used In) Financing Activities

Net (Decrease) in Cash

Cash on Hand and at Banks Ending of Year

Recovered from provision for siow moving finished goods
Recovered from Provision for slow moving spare parts

L.oss (gain) from valuation af financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Dividends revenue from financial assets at fair vaiue through comprehensive income

Cash Flows (used in) from Operating Activities before Changes in Working Capital items
Decrease (increase) In current assets:

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Income tax and End of service Indemnity Paid
Income tax and natlonal contribution tax payments

Dividend proceeds received for financial assets at fair vajue through comprehensive Income and others
An investment in a subsidiary company - capitai recovery

Cash on hand and at banks - beginning of the year

9 -

For the Year Ended

December 31,

Note 2022 2021
10 0
2,195,038 1,577,776
(292,150) -
9 (6,403) (6,511)
14 21,041 21,986
24 (26,850) -
(237,695)
23 5,070 (380,968)
(2,044,796) (1,158,420)
17 27,947 24,317
(358,798) 78,180
44,889 (6,697)
- 426,560
783,580 771,520
22,813 10,311
(130,413) (16,144)
362,071 1,263,730
25 (79,505) (60,167)
17 (76.311) (59.585)
206,255 1,143,978
(1,703,914) (479,586)
12 (500,000) (200,000)
12 200,000
11 2,044,796 1,158,420
846,332
33,862
288,376 -
14 (72,400) (2,318)
1,137.052 476,516
(385,462) 74,172
- (708)
19/b (2,100,000) (2,500,000)
(3,779.695)
(2,485,462) (6,206,231)
(1,142,155) (4,585,737)
2,957,345 7,543,082
5 1,815,190 2,957,345

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH IT AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT.



JORDAN WORSTED MILLS COMPANY
{A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
RUSAIFH THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. General
a. The Jordan Worsted Mills Company was registered as a public shareholding limited company

under number (41) on September 17, 1964 with its head office located in Rusaifeh - Awajan
District - The Hashemit Kingdom of Jordan, P.O.BOX 6060 Amman 11118 Jordan. The
Company’s main objectives are to invest in shares of listed and unlisted companies; to
manufacture and produce worsted in all shapes and types; to manufacture worsted; and to
build, equip, and manage a factory / factories to manufacture worsted and trade in it.

The Company owns 80% of Jordan Fabric and Worsted Mills Private Limited Shareholding
Company, whose head office is in Rusaifeh, Awajan, The Hashemit Kingdom of Jordan. Its
postal address is P.O. Box 6060 Amman 11118 - Jordan. The main objectives of this
company are to manufacture and produce worsted, yarn, and mills in various shapes and
kinds; to produce and sew various kinds of finished clothes; to use them as well as their
accessories; and to trade in them. The main objectives also include building, preparing, and
managing a factory/ factories to manufacture the aforementioned and trade in them. And to
buy, rent or exchange movable and immovable property, and to invest and dispose of its
money that it does not need at once to occupy it in exchange for financial bonds and/or in
the manner it determines from time to time. The subsidiary had assets equal to 1D
15,719,766 and liabilities equal to JD 204,216 as of December 31, 2022, Moreover, revenue
equaled JD 2,637,907 and cost of sales and expenses amounted to JD 1,619,428 for the
year ended December 31, 2022.

On November 10, 2021, Jordan Fabric and Worsted Mills Company (The subsidiary
Company) purchased the entire share of the Jordanian Armed Forces the Arab Army
amounting to 2,000,000 shares at a total price of 3,768,315 dinars according to the letter of
the Jordanian Armed Forces - the Arab Army - No. M U 2021/7/ Strategic Partnership 1303
dated on October 6, 2021 due to his desire to sell his entire share. Accordingly, the Jordan
Fabric and Worsted Mills Company became 80% owned by the Jordan Worsted Mills
Company directly, and the remaining 20% are owned by Jordan Fabric and Worsted Mills
Company as treasury shares as of December 31, 2022 which means that it is owned
indirectly by Jordan Worsted Mills Company.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized by the Board of
Directors’ in their Meeting number (371) on February 8, 2023. These consolidated financial
statements are subject to the General Assembly’s approval.

. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements encompass the financial statements of Jordan
Worsted Mills Company and the financial statements of its subsidiary, Jordan Fabric and
Worsted Mills Company, a private limited shareholding company after eliminating
intercompany balances and transactions.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and entity controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries), the consolidation of the subsidiary
starts from the date of acquisition, which is the date when the Company gain control upon
its subsidiary, and the Company Holds control until the date of disposing the control of its
subsidiary. Control is achieved when the Company:

» Has the power over the investee;

» Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e Has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

-10 -



When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers
that it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

+ The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

¢ Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

¢ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to
be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

When the Company loses control over any of its subsidiaries, the Company:

* Derecognizes the assets of the subsidiary (including goodwill) and liabilities;

¢ Derecognizes the carrying amount of any uncontrolled interest;

¢ Derecognizes the cumulative transfer differences recognized in equity;

s Derecognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

* Derecognizes the fair value of any investment held;

e Derecognizes any surplus or deficit in the income statement; and

¢ Reclassifies the Company’s equity previously recognized in other comprehensive income
to the statement of income or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary that are earned
through institutions with special purposes (small or medium) for the same period of
preparing the company’s financial statements using the same accounting policies.

Adjustments have been made to the subsidiary's consolidated financial statements when
needed, so its accounting policies becomes in line with the accounting policies that are used
by other affiliated companies.

Balances, movements, revenues and internal expenses is eliminated completely between
the affiliated companies during the financial statement consolidation process.

3. Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

- The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC), and prevailing local
laws.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost principle
except for financial assets and financial liabilities shown at fair value at the date of the
consolidated financial statements.

- The consolidated financial statements of the Company are presented in Jordanian Dinar,
which is also its functional currency.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

are consistent with those applied in the year ended December 31, 2021 except for the effect
what are stated in Note (31-a) related to the consolidated financial statements.

11



The following are the most significant accounting policies adopted by the Company:

a. Inventory
Finished goods and spare parts are stated at cost (using the first in, first - out method)
net of a provision for expired and slow-moving items or net realizable value, whichever is
lower. Moreover, work in process inventory and yarn are stated at cost.

b. Information Segment
Business sectors represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products
or services subject to risks and returns different from those of other business sectors
(measured in accordance with the reports sent to the operations management and decision
makers in the Company).

The geographical sector relates to providing products or services in a specific economic
environment subject to risk and returns different from those of sectors functioning in other
economic environments.

¢. Dividends Revenue
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. This is the
previous dividend date for listed equity securities, and usually the date when shareholders
approve the dividend for unlisted equity securities.

The presentation of dividend income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss depends
on the classification and measurement of the equity investment, i.e.:

e For equity instruments which are held for trading, dividend income is presented in
statement of profit or loss within financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
category.

e For equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
dividend income is presented in statement of profit or loss as dividends income from
financial assets through other comprehensive income; and

o For equity instruments not designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
and not held for trading, dividend income is presented as net income from other
instruments at fair value through the profit or loss.

d. Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to, or deducted from, the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

-12 -



Provision for Expected Credit Losses

The Company has adopted the simplified approach to recognize expected credit losses
over the life of its receivables as permitted by IFRS 9. And based on that, non-impaired
trade receivables that do not contain a significant component of financing have been
classified as part of the second phase with the recognition of expected credit losses over
their lifetime.

An allowance for the expected credit loss should be recorded over the life of the financial
instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, and the expected credit loss is a probable estimate of the present value
of the credit loss. This value is measured as the current value of the difference between
the cash flows due to the Company under the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive arising from the weighting of several future economic
scenarios, discounted at the effective interest rate of the asset.

The Company assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment on an individual
basis for each asset of individual value and collectively in a group basis for other assets
that are not individually significant.

Provisions for the credit losses are presented as a reduction of the total carrying amount
of financial assets at amortized cost.

. Financial Assets

Initial Recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (except for financial assets at fair value
through statement of Profit or Loss ) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income:
These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments for the purpose of
retaining them over the long term.

These assets are stated at fair value plus acquisition costs on acquisition and
subsequently revalued at fair value. The change in fair value is reflected in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and in owner's equity, including the
change in fair value arising from translation differences of non-monetary assets
denominated in foreign currencies (if any). In case of the sale of these assets or part
thereof, the resulting profit or loss is taken to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and to the consolidated statement of changes in owner’'s equity.
The fair value reserve balance of the financial assets sold is transferred directly to
retained earnings and not through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Classification of financial assets

Trade receivables that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at
amortized cost:

* The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value

- 13 -



Amortized cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

Subseguent Measurement
All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

Specifically:

° Financial instruments held in the business model for collecting contractual cash flows
with contractual cash flows that are only principal and interest payments on the
principal outstanding, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost;

. Financial instruments held in the business model for both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling debt instruments with contractual cash flows that are only principal
and interest payments on the principal outstanding and are subsequently measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income;

. All other financing instruments (such as debt instruments managed at fair value or

held for sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value through
the statement of profit or loss.

However, the Company may, after initial recognition of the financial asset, may make an
irrevocable choice/designation concerning the financial asset on an individual basis, as
follows:

. The Company may make an irrevocable choice to include the subsequent changes in
the fair value of the equity investment not held for trading or potential replacement
recognized by the acquirer within the business combinations to which IFRS 3 applies,
in other comprehensive income; and

. The Company may irrevocably determine the financial instruments that fulfill the
standards of amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income and are
measured at fair value through the statement of profit or loss if it significantly
eliminates or reduces the accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

Assessment of Business Models

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the
classification of a financial asset. The Company determines the business models at a level
that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. The Company’s business modei does not depend on management’s
intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment is

performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.
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The Company has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments,
which reflect how the Company manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The Company's business models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling financial assets, or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model
assessment. However, this assessment is not performed based on scenarios that the
Company does not reasonably expect to occur, such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’
scenarios. The Company takes into account all relevant evidence available such as:

e The stated policies and objectives of the portfolio and application of those policies
whether the management strategy focuses on obtaining contractual revenues,
maintaining specific profit rate matching the profit of financial assets with the period of
financial liabilities that finance those assets or obtaining cash flow from selling assets. .

« How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;
and

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held

within that business model) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are managed;
and

e How the business managers are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized
financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the
commencement of a new business model. The Company reassess its business models each

reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the
preceding period.

When a debt instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is
derecognized, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In
contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is not subsequently reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or
loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subject to impairment.

Financial Assets at fair Value through the Profit or Loss
Financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are:

= Assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

e Assets that are held in a business mode! other than held to collect contractual cash flows
or held to collect and sell; or

» Assets designated at fair value through the statement of profit or loss using the fair value
option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on re-measurement
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial
assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to
the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in business model, which results in reclassifying the Company’s
financial assets. The changes in the contractual cash flows are considered under the
accounting policy on the modification and de-recognition of financial assets.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses
The carrying amount of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in

that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

s« For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are consolidated part of a

designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss; and

s For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortized
cost of the debt instrument are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Other exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
investments revaluation reserve;

e For financial assets measured at fair value through the statement of profit or loss that
are not part of a designated hedge accounting relationship, exchange differences as Gain
or losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

o For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the investments
revaluation reserve.

f. Impairment
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on the following
financial instruments that are not measured at fair value through the statement of income:

¢ Balances and deposits at banks ;

e Accounts Receivable;

¢ Financial assets at amortized cost (Debt investment securities);

o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income;

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.
The Company calculate impairment on financial statement using simplified method.
a. Financial Liabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
potentially unfavorable to the Company, or a contract that will or may be settled in the
Company's own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company
is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a
derivative contract over own equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed nhumber of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
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Equity Instruments

Paid up Capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury Shares

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognized Consolidated Statement of Income on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through the
statement of income or ‘other financial liabilities’.

. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment. Moreover, fixed assets (except for land) are depreciated, when ready for their
intended use, according to the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives using
rates ranging from 2% to 20%.

When the expected recoverable amount of any fixed assets is less than its net book value,
the net book value is reduced to the expected recoverable amount, and the impairment loss
is taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Fixed assets useful lives are reviewed at the end of each year and if the expected useful life
differs from the previous estimate, the difference is recorded in subsequent years as a
change in accounting estimates.

Fixed assets are disposed of when there are no expected future benefits from their use or
disposal.

i. Provision for end- of-service indemnity

End- of-service indemnity paid to terminated employees is charged to the end- of-service
indemnity provision. Moreover, a provision booked for the end- of- service indemnity
liability is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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i. Income Tax
- Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

Accrued tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Moreover, taxable
income differs from income declared in the consolidated financial statements because the
latter includes non-taxable revenue or tax expenses not deductible in the current year but
deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable by the tax authorities, items
not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to the prevailing
laws, regulations and instructions in Jordan.

- Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of the temporary
timing differences between the value of assets or liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the value on the basis of which taxable income is calculated. Moreover,
deferred taxes (if any) are calculated based on the liability method in the consolidated
statement of financial position according to the tax rates expected to be applied upon the
settlement of the tax liability or realization of the deferred tax assets. Moreover, the
Company did not recognize deferred tax assets because they were deemed immaterial and
not possible to use. The Company did not recognize deferred tax liability for the investment
revaluation reserve as the Company ' s investment revenue is not taxable.

k. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported only in the
consolidated statement of financial position, when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts and the Company intends to either settle them on a net

basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

. Fair value

Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset is to be sold or paid to convert any of the
liabilities in a structured transaction between the market participants on the measurement
date, irrespective of whether the price can be realized directly or whether it is estimated
using another valuation technique. When estimating the fair value of an asset or liability,
the Company takes into consideration when determining the price of any asset or liability
whether market participants are required to consider these factors at the measurement
date. The fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on the same basis, except for measurement procedures that are
similar to fair value procedures and are not fair value such as fair value as used in IAS 36.

In addition, fair value measurements are classified for the purposes of financial reporting to
level (1), (2) or (3) based on the extent to which the inputs are clear concerning the fair
value measurements and the importance of inputs to the full fair value measurements.
These are as follows:

Level inputs (1) inputs derived from quoted (unadjusted) prices of identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that an enterprise can obtain on the
measurement date;

Input level (2) inputs derived from data other than quoted prices used at level 1 and
observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and

Level inputs (3) are inputs to assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market
prices.
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m. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position arising from a past event, and the costs to
settle the obligation are both probable and can be reliably measured.

n. Foreign Currency Transactions
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Jordanian Dinar at
the exchange rates prevailing at year-end. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded
at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Exchange gains or losses
resulting therefrom are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

o. Interest Revenue and Expenses

Interest revenue and expense are taken to the consolidated statement of income using the
accrual basis.

p. Sales

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

1. The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods; and

2. The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; and

3. Revenue can be calculated reliably; and

4. 1t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and

5. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

g. Investment in Affiliate

Affiliate companies are companies over which the Company exercises significant influence
related to financial and operational policies but does not control, with ownership between
20%- 50 % of voting rights. Investment in affiliates is stated at an amount equal to the
Company s share in the affiliates’ net assets and the degree of the Company s participation
in the affiliate. This is done by adjusting the investment account for the change in the
affiliate” s net assets caused by the change in the Company's share in the affiliate’ s profit
or loss according to the latest financial statements.

r. Assets held for sale
Assets held for sale are shown at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The impairment
in the value of the assets held for sale is recorded in the statement of profit or loss. The net

realizable value represents the estimated selling price of the assets minus all costs necessary to
complete the sale

s. The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract.
Moreover, it recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less) and assets lease contracts of low value. For these leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be easily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

e Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

e Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date.

« The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees.

e The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options.

o Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability (if any) is presented as a separate-line item in the consolidated statement of
financial position,

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the book value to reflect interest on
the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the book value to reflect
the lease payments made.

Lease liabilities are re-measured (and a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

asset is made) whenever:

e The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances
resulting in a change in the assessment of an exercise of a purchase option, in which case,
the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments, using a
revised discount rate.

s The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-
measured by discounting the revised lease payments, using an unchanged discount rate
(as long as the lease payments do not change due to a change in the effective interest
rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

e A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease contract, in which case the lease liability is re-measured based on the modified lease
contract term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective rate on the date of the modification.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the period of lease term or useful life of the underlying
asset (which is shorter). If a lease contract transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflecting that the Company expects to exercise a purchase
option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate-line item in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Company applies IAS No. (36) to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and
accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the “Property and Equipment”
policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition occurs and triggers those payments.
These payments are included in the line “other expenses” in the consolidation statement of
profit or loss.

The Company as Lessor
Leases in which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
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When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease
as two separate contracts.

The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the main lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the book value of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of
the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s outstanding net
investment in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS No.

(15) to allocate the considerations received or receivable according to the contract of each
component.

. Significant Accounting Judgments and key Sources of Uncertainty Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and application of the accounting
policies require management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect
the amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and to disclose potential liabilities.
Moreover, these estimates and judgments affect revenues, expenses, provisions, in general,
expected credit losses, as well as changes in fair value that appear in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within shareholders' equity. In particular, the
Company’'s management requires judgments to be made to estimate the amounts and
timing of future cash flows. These estimates are necessarily based on multiple hypotheses
and factors with varying degrees of estimation and uncertainty. Meanwhile, the actual
results may differ from estimates due to the changes arising from the conditions and
circumstances of those estimates in the future.

Judgments, estimates, and assumptions are reviewed periodically. Moreover, the effect of
the change in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs if
the change affects only the financial period. On the other hand, the effect of the change in
estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs and in future
periods if the change affects the financial period and future financial periods.

Management believes that its estimates in the consolidated financial statements are
reasonable.

Significant judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies:

The following are the significant judgments, other than those involving estimates (and
disclosed below) that management has used in the process of applying the company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant impact on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements:

Provision for credit [osses:
Management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate the
amounts and timing of future cash flows and assess the risks of a significant increase in

credit risks for financial assets after initial recognition and future measurement information
for the expected credit losses.

An entity shall always measure the expected credit loss at the amount equal to lifetime
expected credit loss.
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Income tax:
The fiscal year is charged with the income tax expense in accordance with the accounting
regulations, laws and international final report standards.

Lawsuits provision:

A provision is taken for lawsuits raised against the Company (if any). This provision is
subject to an adequate legal study prepared by the Company's legal advisor. Moreover, the
study highlights potential risks that the Company may encounter in the future. Such legal
assessments are reviewed periodically.

End of service Indemnity Provision:

A provision is taken for employees’ end of service Indemnity according to the laws and
regulations.

Provision for spare parts and finished goods:
A provision for spare parts and finished goods is formed to meet any impairment in their

value based on a study prepared by the Company's management, and that study is
reviewed periodically.

Productive lifespan of tangible assets and intangible assets:

The Company’s management periodically recalculates the useful lives of tangible assets and
intangible assets for calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the general
condition of those assets and estimated future useful lives. The impairment loss (if any) is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

The cost of fixed assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives according to the
expected use of the asset, technological obsolescence and software of the assets and

residual value. Management did not calculate any residual value of the assets as they are
considered to be immaterial.

Key sources of uncertainty estimates:

The following are significant estimates that the management have used in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant on the
amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statement:

Assets and liabilities at cost:
Management periodically reviews the assets and liabilities at cost for estimating any

impairment in value (if any), which is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement and valuation methods:

The standard requires identification and disclosure of the level in the fair value hierarchy at
which fair value measurements are categorized in their entirety and separation of fair value
measurements into levels defined in IFRS. The difference between level (2) and level (3)
fair value measurements means evaluating whether the information or inputs are
observable and the significance of the unobservable information, which requires careful
judgment and analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including consideration of
all factors of The asset or liability, and when evaluating the fair value of financial assets or
liabilities, the Company uses market information when available, and in the absence of first-
level inputs, the Company deals with independent and qualified parties to prepare
evaluation studies, where the appropriate evaluation methods and inputs used to prepare
the evaluation are reviewed by the management.
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5. Cash on Hand and at Banks
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021
JjD JD
Cash on hand 1,325 1,790
Current accounts Jordanian Dinar 37,908 134,661
Time deposit at Jordan Ahli Bank member of the
Board of Directors * 1,775,957 2,820,894
1,815,190 2,957,345

* The time deposit is monthly term, automatically renewable, and bears interest at 4.75%
annually, Moreover the deposit includes JD 700 thousand cash collateral against credit
facilities granted to Jordan Worsted Mills Company (Parent Company) as of December 31,
2022.

6. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
a. This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021
ijD D
Financial assets listed at Amman Stock Exchange 2,364,991 2,370,061

7. Receivables and other Debit Balances
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021
D jD
Trade receivables 13,529 3,139
Accrued revenue 36,678 37,445
Employees receivables 10,501 21,640
Prepaid expenses 1,513 3,899
Refundable deposits and customs deposits 10,690 10,710
Sales tax 4,590 45,557
77,501 122,390

8. Finished Goods-Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021
D JD
Finished Goods 57,850 841,430
(Less): Allowance for slow-moving inventory (57,850) (350,000)
491,430

- The movement on the allowance for slow moving inventory is as follows:

2022 2021
D D
Balance at the beginning of the year 350,000 350,000
(Reversed) during the year (292,150)
Balance at the End of the Year 57,850 350,000
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9. Spare Parts and Various Supplies Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021
JD D
Spare parts 60,423 689,899
Raw materials and various supplies
60,423 689,899
{Less): Provision for slow-moving items (60,423) (688,489)
1,410
Factory assets - 15,000
16 410
- Movement on the provision for spare parts and slow-moving items is as follows:
2022 2021
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 688,489 695,000
(Reversed) during the year (6403) -
(Disposed) during the year * (621,663) (6,511)
Balance at the End of the Year 60,423 688,489

*  This item represents cost of spare parts which has been delivered to the foreign company

based on the agreement for selling the machinery and equipment of the factory (Note 10).

10. Assets Held for Sale - Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021
D D

Cost:
Balance beginning of the year -
Additions during the year 3,419,705
Sold during the year (2,493,020)

Balance End of Year 926,685
Accumulated depreciation for assets held for sale:
Balance - beginning of the year
Additions during the year 3,416,873
Sold during the year (2,493,020)

Balance - End of Year 923,853

Net Book Value 2,832

The Board of Directors decided in their meeting held on April 18, 2022 to sell the factory’s
machinery and equipment and spare parts, and accordingly were classified as assets held for
sale. On June 12, 2022, an agreement was signed to sell the factory’s machinery and
equipment to a foreign Company in an amount of EUR 400,000, the obligations as per
agreement have been substantially fulfilled in an amount of EUR 329,700, equivalent to 1D
237,694 and is currently in the process of completing the agreement terms and delivering the
remaining machines and equipment.
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11.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

12.

This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2022 2021
D D
Financial assets listed at Amman Stock Exchange 39,634,603 36,847,880
Unlisted financial assets * 12,137,087 10,919,680

51,771,690 47,767,560

The fair value of the unlisted investments has been determined based on the latest audited or
reviewed set of the financial statements or management accounts and other valuation
methods. This is deemed to be the best tool available to measure the fair value of those
investments.

Dividends revenue from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
amounted to JD 2,044,796 for the year 2022 (JD 1,158,420 for the year 2021).

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

13.

This item consists of the following:

Number December 31, Number December 31,
of bonds 2022 of bonds 2021
D D
Arab International Hotels
Company’s bonds * 1500 1,500,000 1500 1,500, 0¢(
Jordan Ahli Bank bonds** 5 500,000 2 200,000
2,000,000 1,700,000

The Arab International Hotels Company’s bonds mature on February 13, 2027. They bear
interest at a fixed annual rate of 5.5%. The bonds are payable in two instalments on
February 13 and August every year.

Jordan Ahli Bank’s bonds mature on November 13, 2029. They bear interest at a variable
annual rate currently at 7.5%. The bonds are payable in two instaiments on May 13 and
November 13 annually.

Investment in Affiliate Company

This item represents the cost of the investment of the Company and its subsidiary in the Arab
International Real Estate Company, representing around 40% of the investee's capital of JD
3.6 million before the decision of the extraordinary general assembly of the company, which
was held on December 22, 2022, in which, it was decided to amortize the accumulated losses
from the Company's capital and to reduce it’s capital by an amount of JD 2 million so that the
capital, after these decisions, would become JD 1,470,733. The affiliate was established on
June 28, 2007, and its main objectives are to develop investments in various areas of tourism
and real estate; to develop and manage construction, housing, and real estate projects and
markets; to buy, sell, and invest real estates and lands inside and outside the city planning;
and to manage housing, commercial, and other complexes. This amount represents the
Company's share in the affiliate’s net assets. It is also equivalent to the investment in the
affiliate adjusted by the changes in the Company s share in the affiliate’s net assets and by
the amount of the Company’s share in the affiliate’s profits and losses based on the latest
audited or reviewed financiat statements.

The financial information related to the affiliate company is as follows:
December 31,

2022 2021
D D
Assets 1,460,436 3,520,448
Liabilities (1,882) (3,096)
Net assets 1,458,554 3,517,352
Company’s share in the affiliate company’s net assets
583,588 1,429,920
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14. Fixed assets
The details of this item is as foilows:

Fire Computer Factory Electrical Weil and Water Total
Factory Toois Alr Extinguishment  Devices Equipment Extensions Purification Excluding

2022 Lands * Buildings Machines  and equipment _ Condition Devices and Software and Supplfes Furniture _and Appliances _ Vehicles Unit Ltands Total
Cost: Jo o Jo 0 1o Jo plo] Jo Jjo Jo i Jo Jo Jjo
Bailance-beginning of the year 96,344 720,628 3,625,175 2,296 5,345 38,014 103,349 103,150 25,424 192,280 97,779 4,913,440 5,009,784
Additlons - - - - - - - - - 72,400 72,400 72,400
Transfers - - (16,208) 8,169 - - 8,036 - - - - - -
Disposals - - (3,608,970) (4,211) - (4,787) - (85,944) (18,635) - {64,260) - {3,786,807) (3,786,807)
Batance-End of the Year 96,344 720,628 - 6,254 - 558 38,014 25,441 84,515 25,424 200,420 97,779 1,199,033 __ 1,295,377
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance-Beginning of the year 713,375 3,625,175 1,760 - 5,345 36,802 99,237 100,684 25,424 175,741 62,545 4,846,088 4,846,088
Additions 1,196 - 241 - 338 26 563 - 15,612 3,065 21,041 21,041
Transfers - - (16,205) 6,957 - (41) 9,289 - - - - - -
Disposals - - (3 608 970) (3,596) - (4,787) (83,111) (18,639) - (57,860) - (3,776,963) (3,776 963)

Balance- End of the Year - 714,571 - 5,362 - 558 37,099 25,441 82,608 25,424 133,493 65,610 1,090,166 1,090,166
Net Book Value 96,344 6,057 - 892 - - 915 - 1,907 - 66,927 32,169 108,867 205,211
2021
Cost: Jo o 30 i o 10 Jjo Jo Jo 30 Jo Jo Jo 10
Balance-beginning of the year 96,344 401,186 3,625,175 8,996 233,968 38,653 48,499 104,334 106,079 78,461 192,280 97,779 4,935,410 5,031,754
Addittons - - - - - - 630 1,250 340 - - - 2,220 2,220
Transfers - 320,022 - - (233,968) (33,017) - - - (53,037) - - - -
Disposals - (580) - (6,700) - {291) (11,115) (2,235) (3,269) - - - {24 190) (24 190)

Baiance-End of the Year 96,344 720,628 3,625,175 2,296 5,345 38,014 103,349 103,150 25,424 192,280 97,779 4,913,440 5,009,784
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance-Beginning of the year 392,746 3,624,145 8,044 233,968 38,653 46,585 100,474 103,372 78,461 162,462 59,480 4,848,390 4,848,390
Additions 1,187 1,030 416 - - 696 998 581 - 13,279 3,065 21,252 21,252
Transfers - 320,022 - - (233,968) (33,017) - - - (53,037) - - - -
Disposals - (580) - (6,700) - (291) (10,479) (2,235) (3,269) - - - (23 554) (23 554)

Baiance- End of the Year - 713,375 3,625,175 1,760 - 5,345 36,802 99,237 100,684 25,424 175,741 62,545 4,846,088 4,846,088

Net Book Value 96,344 7,253 . 536 - - 1,212 4,112 2,466 - 16,539 35,234 67,352 163,696
% Annual Depreciation Rate - 2-4 15 10-15 15 10 20 10 - 15 10-15 15 15 4-10

Fixed assets include fully depreciated assets of JDO 967.471 as of December 31, 2022 ( )D 4,911,999 as of December 31, 2021).

During the year 2021, electrical devices, air-conditioning devices, and fire and alarm system were reclass f ed by merging them with the tem of bulldings, where the total historical costs of these devices amounted to

JO 320,022 and they are fully depreciated

During the year 2022, a reclassification was made from the factory machinery items to toois and equipment, in addition to factory equipment and supplies, as the total historical costs amounts to JO 16,205. which are

fully depreciated.

* These disposals inciude an amount of JO 3,419,705 that were transferred to assets held for safe (Note 10), and they also Include an amount of JO 302,841 representing fixed assets that were written off during the year.
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15. Due to Banks
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2022 2021

D D
Jordan Ahli Bank - overdraft* 93,317 474,146
Jordan Ahli Bank overdraft** 33,252 38,209
Capital Bank*** 325

126,893 512,355

+ The Company was granted an overdraft facility with a ceiling of JD 700 thousands, at an
annual interest rate of 5.75% by Jordan Ahli Bank {(member of the Board of Directors). The
loan is guaranteed by the Company, and the overdraft is due on July 31, 2023.

**  The Company was granted overdraft facilities with a ceiling of JD 2 million by Jordan Ahli
Bank (member of the Board of Directors) This credit facility is guaranteed by the Company
and bear interest at an annual interest rate of 9.25% for the Bank. Moreover, the overdraft
are due on October 31, 2023.

**x The Company was granted overdraft facilities with a ceiling of JD 500 thousands by Capital
Bank This credit facility is guaranteed by the Company and bear interest at an annual interest
rate of 8.5% for the Bank. Moreover, the overdraft are due on March 31, 2023.

- There are no non-cash transactions for the above overdraft facilities.

16. Payables and Other Credit Balances
This item consists of the foilowing:

December 31,

2022 2021
D ijD
Accounts payable 85,011 27,765
Shareholders’ deposits 128,794 281,518
Board of Directors’ remuneration for the parent and subsidiary 100,000 100,000
Other 17,966 2,220
331,771 411,503

17. End-of Service Indemnity Provision
Movement of the provision for end-of service indemnity during the year is as foilows:

2022 2021
b D
Balance at the beginning of the year 112,035 147,303
Additions 27,947 24,317
Paid during the year {(76,311) (59,585)
Balance at the End of the Year 63,671 112,035

18. Capital and Reserves
a. Capital

The authorized and paid-up capital amounted to JD 15 million distributed over 15,000,000
shares with a par value of JD 1 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

b. Statutory Reserve
This item represents accumulated amounts transferred from annual net income before tax at
a rate of 10% during prior years according to the Jordanian Companies Law. The statutory

reserve is deducted from the Company and its subsidiary. This reserve cannot be distributed
to shareholders.
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c. Voluntary Reserve
This item represents accumulated amounts transferred from the profits of the parent
company at a rate not exceeding 20%. Voluntary reserve is used for the purposes approved
by the Board of Directors, and the General Assembly has the right to distribute all or part of
this amount as dividends to shareholders.

d. Special Reserve

This item represents the cumulative amounts transferred from appropriable profits according
to the bylaws which state the following:” Based on a proposal by the Board of Directors, the
General Assembly has the right to appropriate any percentage of annual profits to the
account of any other reserves deemed necessary for the Company's interests, without
regard to the labels of those Reserves”. In accordance with the decision of the ordinary
general assembly of the owner company held on April 5, 2021, it was approved to transfer
the special reserve account amounting to JD 7,333,000 to the retained earnings.

19. Dividends and Proposed Dividends
Proposed Dividends
The Board of Directors recommended in it's meeting held at February 8, 2023 the distribution
of 14% of the registered capital as dividends to shareholders for the current year which is
equivalent to JD 2.1 million , subject to the approval of the General Assembly.

Dividends
The General Assembly approved in its Ordinary Meeting Held at April 3, 2022 the distribution
of dividends to shareholders equal toc 14% of the paid-in capital as cash dividends to

shareholders for year 2021, which equivalent to JD 2,100 thousands (2,100 thousands for the
year 2020).
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20. Retained Earnings
This item consists of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Retained Earnings Retained Earnings
Realized Unrealized * Total Realized Unrealized * Total
D D D D D D

Balance-Beginning of the year 18,913,819 786,860 19,700,679 12,216,785 405,892 12,622,677
Realized cumulative change in fair value during the year - - -
Change n fair value reserve - 569,194 569,194
Transferred from special reserve - - - 7,333,000 - 7,333,000
Profit for the year 2,144,429 (5,070) 2,139,359 1,117,066 380,968 1,498,034
Change in non-controlling interest - - 177,774 177,774
Distributed dividends (2,100,000) (2,100,000) (2,500,000) - (2,500,000)

Balance-End of the Year 18,958,248 781,790 19,740,038 18,913,819 786,860 19,700,679

¥ Restrcted as of December 31, 2022, in accordance with the instructions of the Jordan Securities Commission.
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21. Cost of Production
This item consists of the following:

2022 2021

Salaries and wages for factory and maintenance 111,519 96,178
Overtime wages 4,973 7,433
Health insurance and medical expenses 5,004 5,342
Company'’s share in social security 10,272 10,694
Maintenance and spare parts 10,199 2,779
Factory vehicles expenses 7,882 7,614
Buildings maintenance 1,462 2,311
Factory cleaning 4,897 5,528
Fees, permits, and taxes 92,170 95,010
Electricity 9,859 7,990
Buildings and devices insurance premiums 5,645 7,861
Company’s contribution to workers™ buffet 1,282 1,716
Fuel and oil 2,100 3,800
Transportation 1,579 3,561
Stationery and printings 532 239
Water and water inspection fees 1,468 550
End-of-service indemnity provision 808 -
Paid end-of-service compensation 136 -
Depreciation-Factory buildings 395 386
Depreciation-machinery, devices, and factory furniture

and equipment 3,290 5,478
Depreciation-factory vehicles 498 3,640
(Transferred) to general and administrative expenses* (146,106)

Total 129,864 268,110

*  This item represents the cost of in-kind donations (various fabrics). The amount has been transferred
from the cost of production to the general and administrative expenses.

22. General and Administrative Expenses
This item consists of the following:

2022 2021
b[») D
Management employees’ salaries 396,998 386,726
Representation allowance 100,000 100,000
Health insurance and management therapies 6,656 5,046
Company’s share in social security 5,261 4,919
Donations and subsidies * 177,844 60,588
Transportation 97,501 99,507
Paid end of service indemnity 9 138
End of service indemnity provision 27,139 24,317
Fees, permits, and taxes 49,169 49,571
Vehicles expenses 11,675 7,668
Vehicles depreciation 15,114 9,639
Depreciation furniture, office equipment,
and computers 941 1,905
Depreciation- Office buildings 801 801
Professional fees 25,097 23,815
Post, telephone, and import stamps 8,337 8,515
Stationery, printings, and maintenance for office
equipment 10,362 9,267
Hospitality 2,697 2,478
Overtime salaries for management employees 143 93
Other expenses 8,318 8,318
Rent 8,000 8,000
Promotion and advertisements 3,193 4,089
955,255 815,400

This item represents donations and subsidies paid to charities, governmental bodies, and not-for-profit
organizations according to the resolutions of the Board of Directors. This item also includes an amount

of JD 146,106 as cost of in-kind donations (various fabrics) and was transferred from the cost of
production (Note 21).
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23. Net profits from Financial Assets at Fair Value through the Statement of Profit or Loss

This item consists of the following:

2022 2021

D D
Dividends revenue 97,438 62,035
(Losses) profits from revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through statement of profit or loss- Unrealized (5,070) 380,968

92,368 443,003
24 her Revenue - Ne

This item consists of the following:

2022 2021

D D
Parent's and subsidiary ' s Board of Directors’ remunerations  (100,000) (100,000)
Interest and bank fees expense (27,742) (27,742)
Interest income 87,124 275,182
Gain from sale of fixed assets 26,850 -
Rent 37,192 8,880
Miscellaneous revenue 13,672 2,430
Revenue from selling machines, machines and parts 237,695 -

Yvy 515 158,750

25. Income Tax
a. Income Tax and National Contribution Tax Provision
The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2022 2021
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 55,607 36,032
Provision for income tax for the current year and prior years 55,679 79,742
Income tax paid during the year (79,505) (60,167)
31,781 55,607

b. Income Tax and National Contribution Tax Expense:

The income tax expense in the statement of profit or loss is as foliows:
For the Year Ended
December 31

2022 2021
h[») h[»)
Income tax differences from prior years 5,172 2,553
Income tax provision during the year 50,507 77,189
55,679 79,742

c. Deferred Tax

The deferred tax benefits of the owner company resuiting from the time differences are not
shown in the income taxes taken in the accounts of the company, according to the
requirements of International Accounting Standard (12) the fact that the owner company
engages in investment activity which is exempt from income tax.

The deferred tax benefits arising from the differences are not shown in the income taxes
paid on the allowances taken in the accounts of the subsidiary, as it is not expected to
benefit from them in the near future.

The company’s taxes were calculated at a rate of 18% as income tax and 1% as national

contribution tax from the taxable income in accordance with tax law no.34 of 2014 and its
amendments which is applicable from the beginning of the year 2019.
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d. Tax status

26.

The income tax of the parent company was settled until the end of the year 2020, the
income tax return has been submitted on time, and in the opinion of the management and
its tax advisor, the Company will not have any tax obligations as of December 31, 2022,
due to the lack of taxable income.

The income tax of its subsidiary was settled until the end of the year 2020, the income tax
return has been submitted on time. The income tax provision has been calculated and
recorded for the income tax for the year ended December 31 2022, and in the opinion of
the Management and tax advisor, it will not have any obligations to the Company that
exceed the allocations taken as of December 31 2022.

Earnings per Share for the Year Attributable to Shareholders

27.

This item consists of the following:

2022 2021
b b
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 2,139,359 1,498,034
Number of shares 15,000,000 15,000,000
Earnings per share for the year -/14 -/10

Risk Management

. Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximize the return to stakeholders through achieving an optimal balance between equity
and debts. The Company’s policy has not changed during the year.

. Market Risks

Market risks are risks are the risks of losses in value resulting from market price changes
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity instruments, and subsequently
changes in the present value of financial instruments off-and on- the consolidated financial
position.

1. Exchange Rate Risks

Exchange rate risk is related to changes in the value of financial instrument due to
changes in foreign exchange prices.

The main operations for the Company is in Jordanian dinar and the risk is from the changes in
the currency exchange price which require the company to pay in foreign currency and since
the Jordanian dinar (the Company’s functional currency) is pegged to the US Dollar. The
management assume that the risk from foreign currency exchange is immaterial.

2. Share Price Fluctuation Risk

Share price fluctuation risk represents the decline in fair value due to changes in price
indexes and individual share prices.

- The following table illustrates the effect of a 5% increase (decrease) in the index of Amman

Stock Exchange, in which the shares are traded as of the consolidated financial statements
date

Effect on Equity Effect on Net Income

2022 Change in Index Profit \ (Loss) Profit \ (Loss)
D 1D
Financial Markets 5% Increase 1,981,730 118,250
Financial Markets 5% Decrease (1,981,730) (118,250)
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3. Interest Rate Risks
Interest rate risk represents the risks resulting from changes in the financial instrument as a result of
the change in average interest rates prevailing in the market. Moreover, the Company and its
subsidiaries continually manage their exposure to interest risk, and all varied considerations such as
financing and renewal of the current positions are revalued continually.

The sensitivity analysis below is determined according to the exposure to interest rates related to
bank deposits and due to banks as of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.
Furthermore, the analysis was prepared on the assumption that the outstanding amount as of the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position was outstanding during the whole year. An
increase or decrease of 0/5%, which represents the Company’s and its subsidiary’ s management's
assessment of the likely and acceptable change in interest rates, is used.

+ 0/5% -0/5%
2022 2021 2022 2021
D D D D
(Loss) profit for the year 8,245 11,543 (8,245) (11,543)
Owners’ equity 8,245 11,543 (8,245) (11,543)

4. Liquidity Risks
Liquidity risk, also known as financing risk, is the inability of the Company and its subsidiary to
provide the funding necessary to settle its obligations on the due dates. The Company manages
liquidity risks by keeping reserves, continuously controlling cash flows, and matching the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. Part of cash is invested in cash balances at banks and financial
assets at fair value through the statement of income and, thus, is available to meet short-term and
mid-term obligations and liquidity management requirements.

The following table describes the maturities of the financial liabilities of the Company:

December 31

2022 2021
Less than one Less than one
year year
1D D

Due to banks 126,893 512,355
Payables and other credit balances 331,771 411,503
Income tax and National Contribution tax provision 31,781 55,607
490,445 979,4§§

d. Credit RIsks
Credit risk is the risk of failure of the other party to fulfil its contractual obligations, causing losses to the
Company and its subsidiary. Moreover, the Company and its subsidiary follows the policy of dealing with

only creditworthy parties, so as to reduce the risk of financial losses resulting from failure to meet
commitments.

The Company’s and its Subsidiary's financial assets consist mainly of financial assets and cash
and cash equivalents do not represent high concentration of credit risks.

29. Contingent Liabilities

As of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the Company was contingently
liable as follows:

December 31,

2022 2021
i[o) D
Letters of quarantees 400,000 550,000
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30. Balances of and Transactions with Related Partjes
The details of the balances and transactions with related parties (Companies and Corporations
represented by the Board of Directors) as of the end of the year are as follows:

December 31

2022 2021
On-Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Items: b D
Time deposit at Jordan Ahli Bank Member of the Board of Directors 1,775,954 2,820,894
Bank(creditor)-Jordan Ahli Bank-member of the Board of Directors (32,252) (38,209)
Bank(creditor)-Jordan Ahli Bank-member of the Board of Directors (93,317) (474,146)
Current accounts-Arab Bank-member of the Board of Directors 584 334
Current accounts-Jordan Ahli Bank-member of the Board of Directors 37,311 133,194
Off- Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Items:
Letters of Guarantee = Arab Bank- member of the Board of Directors 150,000
Letters of Guarantee Jordan Ahli Bank- member of the Board of
Directors 400,000 400,000
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2022 2021
Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss Items: D D
Military sales-Board of Directors 1,221,416 1,572,828
Debit interest and commissions 29,018 27,742
Credit interest 87,124 275,182

Salaries, bonuses, and other benefits for the Board of Directors and executive management
amounted to JD 646,660 for the year 2022.
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31. Segmental and Geographical Distribution

The following is information about the Company's business sector according to activities:

Total
For the Year Ended
December 31,
Manufacturing Investing * 2022 2021
D D D D
Sales 1,261,523 - 1,261,523 1,583,653
Cost of sales (913,444) (913,444) _ (1,039,639)
Company’s Business Sector Results 348,079 - 348,079 544,023
Selling and distribution expenses - -
General and administrative expenses (650,305)  (304,950) (955,255) (815,400)
Financial assets income - net 716,410 1,513,736 2,230,146 1,690,403
Other income - net 361,421 (87,906) 273,515 158,750
Recovered from provision for slow moving
finished goods 292,150 - 292,150 -
Recovered from provision for slow moving
Spare parts 6,403 - 6,403 -
Net profit for the Year before Income Tax 1,074,158 1,120,880 2,195,038 1,577,776
Income tax expenses (53,022) (53,022) (75,453)
National Contribution Tax Expense (2,657) - (2,657) (4,289)
Profit for the Year 1,018,479 1,120,880 2,139,359 1,498,034

*  Net after excluding the Company 's share of the Subsidiary’s distributed profits during the year

2021 of JD 1 miilion from this sector.

December 31
Manufacturing Investing 2022 2021
Other Information D D D D
Sector Assets 15,719,766 43,100,227 58,821,003 57,018,812
Sector Liabilities 204,216 349,900 554,116 1,091,500

- All the assets and operations of the Company and its Subsidiary are within the Hashemite

Kingdom of Jordan.
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Adoption of new and revised Standards

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2022, have been adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material
impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the
accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update [FRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework
instead of the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for
obligations within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC
21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the
levy has occurred by the acquisition date.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for
use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an
entity recognises such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity
measures the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing whether an asset is functioning
properly’. IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical
performance of the asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial
statements shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss
that relate to items produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities,

and which line item(s) in the statement of comprehensive income include(s) such
proceeds and cost.

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cast of Fulifilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiilling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

The Annual Improvements include amendments to four standards:

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time
adopter later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation
differences. As a result of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in
IFRS 1:D16 (@) can now also elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all
foreign operations at the carrying amount that would be included in the parent’s
financial statements, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRS Standards, if no
adjustments were made for procedures and for the effects of the business combination
in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an
associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a).
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the ‘10 per cent’ test to assess whether to
derecoghnise a financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity
or the lender on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment
improvements.

the of the

removes illustration reimbursement of leasehold

IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with
the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash
flows and discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pretax or
post-tax cash flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement.

. New and Revised Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorization of these consoclidated financial statements, the Company has
not applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020
amendments to IFRS 17)
IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance
contracts with direct participation features, described as the variable
fee approach. The general model is simplified if certain criteria are
met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the
premium allocation approach.

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount,
timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures
the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account market interest
rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees.

In June 2020, the Board issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to address
concerns and implementation challenges that were identified after
IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date of initial
application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. At the same
time, the Board issued Extensionh of the Temporary Exemption from
Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) that extends the fixed
expiry date of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS
4 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

In December 2021, the IASB issued Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9—Comparative Information (Amendment to IFRS 17) to
address implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17
was published. The amendment addresses challenges in the
presentation of comparative information.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial
application is the start of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the
beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of initial
application.
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New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as
current or non-current in the statement of financial position and not
the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or
expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current
or noncurrent is based on rights that are in existence at the end of
the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settiement of a liability, explain that rights are in existence if
covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to
disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all
instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with *material
accounting policy information’. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that
accounting policy information that relates to immaterial transactions,
other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature
of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material.

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and
demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’
described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.
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New and revised IFRSs -
Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors - Definition of Accounting
Estimates
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting
estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
definition, accounting estimates are “"monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.

However, the Board retained the concept of changes in accounting

estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:

« A change in accounting estimate that results from new
information or new developments is not the correction of an error

e The effects of a change in an input or a8 measurement technique
used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in
accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of
prior period errors

The IASB added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on

implementing IAS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The IASB has

deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause confusion in light

of the amendments,

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial
recognition exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does not
apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise
upon recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-
use asset applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to
recognise the related deferred tax asset and liability, with the

recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject tc the
recoverability criteria in IAS 12.

The Board aiso adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains
how the amendments are applied.
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Effective date

January 1, 2023,
with earlier
application
permitted

January 1, 2023,
with earlier
application
permitted



New and revised IFRSs Effective date
The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the January 1, 2023,

beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, with earlier
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity application
recognises: permitted

A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the
corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the
related asset
The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopted in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable
and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no

material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company in the period of
initial application.
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